
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Call In Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

Wednesday, 5 January 2011 at 7.30 pm 
Committee Room 4, Brent Town Hall, Forty Lane, 
Wembley, HA9 9HD 
 
 
Membership: 
 
Members first alternates Second alternates 
Councillors: Councillors: Councillors: 
   
Castle (Chair) Clues Brown 
Mrs Bacchus Van Kalwala Sheth 
Denselow Beckman Hossain 
Kabir Long Chohan 
Lorber Matthews Allie 
Mashari McLennan Aden 
Mistry Adeyeye Al-Ebadi 
BM Patel HB Patel Colwill 
 
 
For further information contact: Toby Howes, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
020 8937 1307, toby.howes@brent.gov.uk 
 
For electronic copies of minutes, reports and agendas, and to be alerted when the 
minutes of this meeting have been published visit: 

www.brent.gov.uk/committees 
 
The press and public are welcome to attend this meeting 
 

Public Document Pack



 

2 
 

Agenda 
 
Introductions, if appropriate. 
 
Apologies for absence and clarification of alternate members 
 

Item Page 
 

1 Declarations of personal and prejudicial interests  
 

 

 Members are invited to declare at this stage of the meeting any relevant 
financial or other interest in the items on the agenda. 
 

 

2 Deputations (if any)  
 

 

3 Minutes of the last meetings held on 30 November 2010 and 9 
December 2010  

 

1 - 10 

 The minutes of 30 November 2010 are attached. 
 
Minutes of 9 December 2010 to follow. 
 

 

4 Call-in of Executive decisions from the meeting of the Executive held 
on 13 December 2010  

 

 

 Decisions made by the Executive on   in respect of the following reports 
were called-in for consideration by the Call In Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee in accordance with Standing Orders 6 (b) and 18. 
 

 

a) Adult Social Care Direct Services review  
 

11 - 94 

 The reason for the call-in is:- 
 

• To give full consideration to the alternative proposal submitted by 
Brent LD Carers. 
 

The Executive report is attached.  The Lead Member and Lead Officer are 
invited to the meeting to respond to Members’ questions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

3 
 

b) Fees and Charges  
 

95 - 114 

 The reason for the call-in is:- 
 

• To give full consideration to the impact on services of increases in 
fees an charges. 
 

The Executive report is attached.  The Lead Member and Lead Officer are 
invited to the meeting to respond to Members’ questions. 
 
 

 

5 The Executive list of decisions for the meeting that took place on 
Monday, 13 December 2010  

 

115 - 
120 

 The list of decisions from the meeting that took place on Monday, 13 
December 2010 is attached for information. 
 

 

6 Date of next meeting  
 

 

 The next meeting of the Call In Overview and Scrutiny Committee is 
scheduled for Wednesday, 2 February 2011 at 7.30 pm and will take 
place in the event of there being any call-ins of decisions made by the 
Executive on 17 January 2011. 
 

 

7 Any other urgent business  
 

 

 Notice of items raised under this heading must be given in writing to the 
Democratic Services Manager or his representative before the meeting in 
accordance with Standing Order 64. 
 

 

 
 

� Please remember to SWITCH OFF your mobile phone during the meeting. 
• The meeting room is accessible by lift and seats will be provided for 

members of the public. 
• Toilets are available on the second floor. 
• Catering facilities can be found on the first floor near the Paul Daisley Hall. 
• A public telephone is located in the foyer on the ground floor, opposite the 

Porters’ Lodge 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
MINUTES OF THE CALL IN OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Tuesday, 30 November 2010 at 7.30 pm 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillor Lorber (Chair for the meeting) and Councillors Lorber, Denselow, 
Kabir and Mistry and H B Patel (alternate for Councillor B M Patel). 
 

 
Also Present: Councillors Chohan, J Moher (Lead Member for Highways and 
Transportation) and Powney (Lead Member for Environment, Planning and Culture). 

 
Apologies were received from: Councillors Bacchus, Castle and B M Patel. 
 

 
 

1. Election of Chair  
 
As the Chair of the committee was not present, Members were required to elect a 
Chair for this meeting.  Councillor Lorber and Councillor Kabir were nominated.  
Both nominations were put to the vote and Councillor Lorber was declared the 
Chair for this meeting. 
 
RESOLVED:- 
 
that Councillor Lorber chair this meeting of the committee. 
 

2. Declarations of personal and prejudicial interests  
 
Councillor Powney (Lead Member for Environment, Planning and Culture) declared 
an interest as a member of the West London Waste Authority in respect of the 
Waste and street cleansing – street cleansing efficiency savings and Waste 
collection strategy reports.  However, he did not consider the interest as prejudicial 
and remained present to take part in discussions on these items. 
 

3. Call-ins of Executive decisions from the meeting of the Executive held on 
Monday, 15 November 2010  
 
Decisions made by the Executive on 15 November 2010 in respect of the reports 
below were called-in for consideration by the Forward Plan Select Committee in 
accordance with Standing Orders 6(b) and 18. 
 
 
3.1 Waste and street cleansing - street cleansing efficiency savings  
 
 The reasons for the call-in were:- 
 

• The decision departs from the principle of protecting front line services. 
• Consider the implications for the cleanliness of local streets. 
• Consider the implications of prompt identifying of dumped rubbish and 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



2 
Call In Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 30 November 2010 

           their removal. 
• Consider full and effective consultation with local residents on this. 

 
Councillor J Moher (Lead Member for Highways and Transportation) introduced the 
report and advised that the proposals were part of the additional savings that were 
required.  Negotiations with Veolia, the waste and street cleansing contractor were 
to take place with the intention of reducing costs.  The main proposal was the 
option to decrease the sweeping frequency for Zone 5 streets to twice weekly 
sweeps.  Members heard that some streets in Zone 5 were not necessarily swept 
three times a week every time under the current arrangements. Councillor J Moher 
added that the council was reviewing all its contracts in all service areas with a view 
to seeking more for less because of the council’s financial situation. 
 
With the approval of the Chair, Elaine Henderson addressed the committee.  Elaine 
Henderson stated that she was speaking on behalf of her residents’ association.  
She commented that there had been a large improvement in the cleanliness of 
streets since the contract agreed in 2007 and she hoped that the high level of 
cleanliness would be maintained.  Members heard that the street cleaners provided 
a decent service, showed initiative and also played a useful role overall for the 
community.  Elaine Henderson suggested that the main method to achieve savings 
should be through reducing waste that went to landfill to reduce landfill tax costs.   
 
During discussion by Members, Councillor Brown sought views with regard to the 
impact on street cleanliness as a result of reducing the sweeping frequency in Zone 
5 streets.  He asked for clarification with regard to the total savings target and had 
this factored in the £0.25m cost required to implement the savings measures and 
whether this would also impact on summer season sweeps and leaf fall collections.  
Councillor H B Patel commented that street cleaning was one of the most visible 
council services to residents and visitors to the borough and he felt there could be 
risks involved in maintaining standards with less resources.  In view that the 
Olympics was less than two years away, he enquired what steps were being taken 
to ensure high levels of cleanliness to satisfy both residents and visitors to the 
borough.  Councillor H B Patel also commented that there may be legal 
complications in respect of seeking changes to the existing contract. 
 
Councillor Mistry asked if there were any implications for the street washing service 
and whether residents’ views had been sought with regard to fly tipping during the 
consultation.  Councillor Denselow enquired whether frontline staff would be 
protected when introducing savings measures.  He referred to the importance of 
residents’ perception of cleanliness in the borough and asked how the changes to 
the street cleaning service would be communicated to them.  Councillor Kabir 
sought assurances that street cleaning on the same day after Wembley event days 
would remain. 
 
Councillor Lorber (Chair for the meeting) sought clarification with regard to some 
streets in Zone 5 not receiving three sweeps per week as he understood that this 
had been specified in the contract and comments with regard to the need to consult 
residents about changes to the contract.  He asked how concerns raised by the 
contractor with regard to summer season sweeps and leaf fall collections would be 
addressed.  With regard to option three, further integration of special collections 
and cleansing, he asked at what level would any increase in bulky waste collection 
requests would affect implementation.  The Chair asked whether any increase in 

Page 2



3 
Call In Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 30 November 2010 

complaints as a result of changes to the service had been considered and if the 
costs involved in dealing with more complaints had been factored in.   
 
The Chair commented that a need to improve waste collection and street cleaning 
had been clearly identified in 2006 when consultation had shown that residents had 
perceived the borough as unclean.  Since the contract had been upgraded in 2007, 
there had been an emphasis on improving services as opposed to previous 
arrangements where the contractor had decided what areas required attention.  The 
upgrade had resulted in significant improvement in both street cleaning and waste 
collection, however the Chair expressed concern that these improvements were in 
danger of being undermined by the changes proposed.  With regard to the free 
bulky waste collection, the Chair commented that a relatively few number used this 
service, whilst all residents required a street cleaning service which may be 
compromised by the changes.  He felt that reducing frequency in street cleaning for 
Zone 5 streets may offer an easy solution to generate savings, however he opined 
that some Zone 5 streets were not receiving adequate cleaning even under the 
three visits per week that they were currently receiving and streets such as 
Fernbank Avenue and Rosebank Avenue would visibly suffer as a result.  The Chair 
suggested that Zone 5 streets be reviewed on a street by street basis to identify 
what the appropriate level of cleaning should be and street cleaning needed to be 
protected from savings initiatives in view of the high public profile of this service.  
He also sought details with regard to independent surveys being undertaken to 
obtain the views of residents. 
 
In reply to the issues raised, Councillor J Moher acknowledged the comments made 
and he stressed the need to maintain the quality of service. He acknowledged that 
there had been a significant improvement in the cleanliness of streets and reduction 
in complaints since the upgraded contract had been agreed in 2007, however he 
commented that there was anecdotal evidence to suggest that not all Zone 5 
streets were cleaned three times per week.  He stressed the importance in 
monitoring the cleanliness of Zone 5 streets to ensure standards did not drop, 
however in some streets the frequency of cleaning required was less.   Councillor J 
Moher advised that there was no legal requirement to consult residents over 
changes to the contract as it was a matter between the council and the contractor.  
It was possible that the contractor may challenge the changes proposed, however 
they were minor in nature so the risk of this happening was low.  With regard to 
summer and leaf fall collections, Councillor J Moher advised that the same level of 
service was expected of the contractor and added that this was another example of 
the council seeking better value from its contracts.   
 
Councillor J Moher informed Members that an independent report had concluded 
that the cost of waste collection and street cleaning contract was high compared to 
other local authorities and this highlighted the need to seek better value from the 
contract through negotiations.  Whilst savings were sought out of financial 
necessity, every effort was being made to maintain front line services.  By 
maintaining standards, it was expected that residents would not have need to 
register complaints. 
 
Councillor Powney (Lead Member for Environment, Planning and Culture) added 
that sub-dividing Zone 5 streets in terms of frequency of street cleaning had been 
considered, however because of the village system used by the contractor such a 
measure would be too complicated to implement at a practical level. 

Page 3



4 
Call In Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 30 November 2010 

 
Chris Whyte (Head of Environment Management, Environment and Neighbourhood 
Services) advised that the contract had specified that streets were required to be at 
cleanliness levels A or B as per EPA guidance.  It was for the contractor to 
determine what level of frequency was required to ensure streets reached this level 
of cleanliness.  It was felt that the changes proposed for Zone 5 streets would not 
have any noticeable effect on cleanliness for these streets.  Monitoring officers 
would play a crucial role in reporting the level of cleanliness of these streets and to 
make the necessary representations to the contractor if there was a drop in 
standards.  Chris Whyte advised that the contractor had included an option to clean 
Zone 5 streets twice a week in their tender for the 2007 contract.  Summer and leaf 
fall collections were a separate issue from street cleaning and the contractor would 
be required to maintain the same level of service under the terms of the contract.  
With regard to street washing, the contractor had two vehicles at its disposal to 
undertake washing sessions on an ad-hoc basis.  
 
With regard to bulky waste collections, Chris Whyte confirmed that demand had 
risen, however it was yet to reach a level which may require a review of how it may 
affect the ability to merge the street cleaning and bulky waste collection services.  
He confirmed that complaints were at an all time low and it was not envisaged that 
the changes would give rise to an increase in complaints.  Members noted that 
there was a £700,000 savings target for street cleaning changes and £500,000 
from waste collection, however it was now anticipated that the total savings 
achieved would be £1.5m as opposed to the objective of £1.2m.  Chris Whyte 
confirmed that Wembley Event Day street cleaning came under a separate 
agreement which required same day cleans and Wembley Stadium contributed to 
the costs to provide this service.  He advised that the Residents Attitude Survey 
had identified street cleaning as one of the most appreciated services provided by 
the council and he reaffirmed that the contractor would be obliged to maintain all 
streets at cleanliness levels A or B, regardless of the frequency of cleaning.  The 
Keep Britain Tidy Group undertook public surveys on a ‘mystery shopper’ basis and 
this was undertaken three times a year, with the next two due to be undertaken 
between  December 2010 and March 2011 and April to July 2011.  The survey 
scored cleanliness by a grading of streets and incidences of fly tipping could 
influence the overall grading. 
 
The Chair then indicated that in view that this item and the item below were inter-
linked, consideration of any recommendations would be undertaken after both items 
had been discussed. 
 
3.2 Waste collection strategy  
 
The reasons for the call-in were:- 
 

• To discuss concerns regarding the nature and openness of the consultation 
and the possibility of full consulting residents. 

• To consider the concerns of residents around the reduction in service and 
the implications of the increase in the number of bins. 

• To discuss concerns regarding the co-mingling of waste and contamination 
of waste. 

• To fully review the options available.  

Page 4



5 
Call In Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 30 November 2010 

• To consider how to retain public support for recycling and not lose it by 
scrapping weekly refuse collections. 

• To consider implications of fortnightly refuse collections on housing estates 
and properties in multiple occupation. 

• To consider the risk of Judicial Review.  
 

Members had the Executive report on the Waste collection strategy.  Elaine 
Henderson (Brent Friends of the Earth) was then invited by the Chair to address the 
committee. 
 
Elaine Henderson began by stating that Brent Friends of the Earth had welcomed 
the upgraded waste collection and street cleaning contract in 2007 and initiatives 
such as green boxes and bins were eco friendly and encouraged collection of 
recyclable waste.  Elaine Henderson acknowledged that the Council needed to 
make savings, however she suggested that the best way to achieve this was to 
minimise landfill tax charges which had cost the council £9 million last year.  She 
commented that there had not been sufficient reference to co-mingling waste 
collection on the council’s website and the summary report and she felt that it was 
important to highlight this as it was a major change.  Elaine Henderson then 
referred to the recommendations from Brent Friends of the Earth circulated to 
Members at the meeting and stated that a co-mingling system would only increase 
recycling by 3% and adding glass to the collection would worsen the situation.  
Members heard that Waste and Resources Action Programme (WRAP) had 
recommended that the dry recycling bin needed to be in region of 140-180 litres for 
fortnightly collections and the cost of the new bins would be approximately £1.7 
million.  Elaine Henderson felt that offering more green recycling bins would be 
preferable.  Members heard that a company that currently bought recycled paper 
from the council had stated that it would not knowingly buy recycled waste from co-
mingled collections and the council was at risk of losing this customer.  Other local 
authorities, such as Camden council, were moving away from co-mingled 
collections and such a system increased the risk of inappropriate materials being 
placed in the bins.  Under a mechanical recovery system, a lot of waste still ended 
up in landfill.  In addition, providing suitable instructions to residents to make the 
system work in Brent was complicated by English not being the first language of 
many and much emphasis needed to be made in educating residents of the need to 
recycle as well as extending the recycling service.   The same day collection had 
been successful and increased residents’ satisfaction by 16% and the only other 
London boroughs with fortnightly collections, Bexley, Harrow and Kingston, were 
much different in terms of demographics compared to Brent.  Elaine Henderson 
asked that the council re-consider its proposals and she reaffirmed Brent Friends of 
the Earth’s willingness to work with the council in providing alternative solutions. 
 
Elaine Henderson then addressed the committee as a local resident. She felt that 
the consultation was significantly flawed, with no mention of fortnightly collections 
using 240 litre bins and co-mingled collections.  The language used in the 
consultation had been unclear, whilst the overall response to the consultation was 
relatively small.  For this reason, she suggested that the council’s proposals could 
be subject to judicial review. 
 
In reply to the issues raised by Elaine Henderson, Councillor Powney stated that 
the consultation undertaken was similar to other council consultations and he felt 
that the consultation document had clearly explained proposals that were complex 

Page 5



6 
Call In Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 30 November 2010 

by nature.  The consultation had taken place between 31 August and 20 October 
and the proposals had been in the public domain since the publication of the 
Executive agenda for the Executive meeting on 11 August.  There had also been a 
number of features in the local press with regard to the proposals.  Councillor 
Powney advised that the proposals would not see a reduction in service but would 
actually be an enhancement, with capacity for recycling increased, recycling 
extended to flatted properties and a greater range of materials being collected for 
recycling.  The new proposals would enhance collection of recycled cardboard and 
food waste and green box users would now be able to recycle tetra packs.  
Members heard that the new food bins would be smaller than the green boxes.  
Councillor Powney assured the committee that where gardens were too small to 
accommodate additional bins, alternative arrangements would be considered.   
 
With regard to co-mingled collections, Councillor Powney stated that there was a 
risk of contamination of recycled waste irrespective of the collection method used, 
however those local authorities achieving high recycling rates used co-mingling 
collection techniques.  All options had been considered before identifying co-
mingling as likely to be most effective method in increasing recycling and this had 
included looking at the methods used by some local authorities that had high 
recycling rates.  Councillor Powney confirmed that there would be weekly co-
mingled collections from flatted properties and he added that the proposals would 
help achieve less waste going to landfill and therefore less cost to the council.  He 
felt that there was no basis for a judicial review with regard to the proposals. 
 
Chris Whyte advised that the proposals were designed to considerably improve the 
recycling rate to 50%, whilst also providing a more cost effective service.  He 
advised that the vehicle fleet would need to be doubled to achieve 50% recycling 
rate using the current system. 
 
During discussion by Members, Councillor Kabir welcomed some of the 
suggestions made by Brent Friends of the Earth and queried whether any who had 
responded to the consultation had cited difficulties in understanding the 
consultation document and commented that most residents would have sufficient 
understanding of English to understand the document.  Councillor H B Patel felt that 
the proposals had not been clearly explained at the Area Consultative Forums 
(ACFs) and there was a need to consult more widely.  He suggested that language 
issues also needed to be addressed in respect of this.  He stressed the importance 
in educating residents of the need to recycle and he enquired what action was 
being taken to address this.  He also enquired why there had been an overall 
reduction in total waste and was this indicative of increased recycling.  Councillor 
Mistry also asked what communication initiatives were being undertaken to highlight 
the importance of recycling to residents, especially in view of the borough’s 
diversity.  In noting that the proposals aimed to increase recycling rates and reduce 
landfill taxes, he also asked whether it was also intended to reduce the carbon 
footprint.   
 
Councillor Brown sought further details with regard to where future recycled waste 
would be sent to, in particular newspaper waste, stating that it presently remained 
in the UK and expressed concern that the carbon footprint would be increased if 
sold recycled materials were sent overseas by air.  He enquired about the legality of 
sending recycled waste to China and why the 2010 consultation survey was not as 
comprehensive as the one undertaken in 2007.  Councillor Brown commented that 

Page 6



7 
Call In Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 30 November 2010 

he did not think the consultation document clearly specified that alternate weekly 
collections were proposed, adding that he felt that the language used was not user 
friendly.  He enquired whether it was proposed that all recycled materials be 
collected through co-mingling methods.  He also referred to West Somerset local 
authority using kerbside collection techniques to achieve a 51% recycling rate as 
highlighted in the Brent Friends of the Earth written submission and he asked 
reasons as to why the council could not achieve such a rate through the same 
collection method. 
 
The Chair enquired where the co-mingled waste would be sent to and would the 
recycled material be of sufficient quality for UK markets.  He asked whether there 
would be a need to change the paper contractor if the present one would not accept 
recycled waste from co-mingled collections.  Views were sought in respect of West 
Somerset local authority achieving a recycling rate of 51% through kerbside 
collections.  The Chair asked what increases in recycling could be achieved through 
better communication and education of residents as opposed to the proposals put 
forward.  He also enquired about the possibility of maintaining a kerbside collection 
for properties that currently received this service and offering a co-mingled 
collection service to flatted properties.  
 
With regard to the consultation document, the Chair felt that the proposals had not 
been made sufficiently clear and contained only two questions, considerably less 
than the recent library consultation.  He queried why the word ‘rubbish’ had not 
been used in the questions and felt that the language used may not be helpful to 
those whose first language was not English.  The consultation had also not 
mentioned that some residents would be receiving additional wheelie bins, whilst it 
had not been implied that waste collections would be fortnightly.  In view of what he 
felt were major changes to the service, the Chair felt that the consultation was 
inadequate and may attract residents’ complaints that would be referred to the 
Local Government Ombudsman.  The Chair suggested that it would be appropriate 
to re-consult residents with a more comprehensive document clearly stating the 
proposals to move to fortnightly collections and co-mingling and he added that only 
a relatively small number had responded to the consultation.  Concern was 
expressed that residents may tire of being informed of another change to the 
service and this could affect recycling rates. The Chair sought further details with 
regard to proposals for flatted properties collection and what were risks of 
contamination from the co-mingled waste in respect of these properties.  He also 
enquired about the implications if the recycling target rates were not met. 
 
In reply to the issues raised, Councillor Powney confirmed that the contractor, 
Veolia, owned the waste once it was collected, however it was envisaged that most 
of the recycled materials sold would remain in the UK.  Even if recycled waste was 
sent overseas, it was likely to be sent by sea.  Councillor Powney confirmed that 
the proposals were also designed to reduce the carbon footprint in line with the 
council’s objectives.  He advised that the consultation had been conducted in 
similar fashion to other consultation exercises and had also included presentations 
to all ACFs to explain a complex issue.  He stated that if the consultation was 
extended significantly wider than usual, there would be a need to increase 
resources, which was not desirable in view of the council’s financial situation.  This 
effect would be increased by the need to widen all other consultations.  Councillor 
Powney acknowledged that educating residents when changing waste collection 
arrangements was always necessary and he cited the example of the London 

Page 7



8 
Call In Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 30 November 2010 

Borough of Harrow which had significantly increased recycling rates since changing 
to fortnightly collections.  Members heard that it was not proposed to introduce a 
one size fits all in respect of bins and other solutions would be considered for some 
flatted properties as appropriate as a three bins system would not be suitable for all 
properties.  Councillor Powney added that the borough’s relatively transient 
population and language issues also needed to be taken into consideration.  He 
also stressed the need for the council to find £37 million savings in the next year 
and this needed to be considered in context in relation to waste management 
contract. 
 
Councillor J Moher stated that the consultation documents could be re-assessed to 
see how they could be improved in future.  He emphasised the need to increase 
recycling from its present rate of 28% and a co-mingling collection technique had 
been identified as key to achieving this.  Residents needed to recycle more and this 
message needed to be clearly communicated to them. 
 
Chris Whyte confirmed that the co-mingled waste would be sent to a recycling 
facility centre and that Veolia would sell recycled materials depending on market 
demands, although there was a large market for this within Europe.  Legally, there 
was nothing to prevent the contractor from selling recycled materials to China 
although this was unlikely because of market conditions.  An assessment 
undertaken had concluded that recycling could only be increased to 34% if a 
communications campaign was launched but retaining the current collection system 
and into the high 30% if flatted properties were added to the recycling collection 
service whilst a kerbside collection was maintained for properties that currently had 
this service.  For flatted properties, a block of flats comprising of less than eight flats 
would receive fortnightly collections and those with more than eight flats would 
receive weekly collections.  The recycling rate was presently 28%, although the 
figure had been higher and peaked when compulsory recycling had initially been 
introduced.  It was noted that between 90-95% of residents under the compulsory 
scheme had participated in it.  Although the majority of residents were recycling, the 
containers presently used were insufficient and this is why changes to bins had 
been proposed.  Chris Whyte confirmed that the consultation document had been 
sent to all residential properties in the borough and it had been included in Brent 
Magazine.  The proposals had attracted the interest of a wide variety of 
organisations, including local and London-wide newspapers and Chris Whyte felt 
that most residents were aware of the proposal for fortnightly collections.  Members 
heard that the reduction in total overall waste could be attributed to the economic 
downturn.  Chris Whyte advised that a communication action plan was being drawn 
up to inform residents of the changes to waste collection and stressing the need to 
recycle and extra funding had been made available for this.   
 
Chris Whyte advised that contamination of up to 10% would be acceptable in terms 
of recycled materials for co-mingled collections.  He explained that West Somerset 
had achieved a high recycling rate from kerbside collections because it had a far 
greater proportion of green waste, however Brent was limited by the number of 
vehicles and the size of containers for such a system and therefore had chosen the 
co-mingled option.  Members noted that the £1.2 million savings targeted would be 
at risk of not being achieved and the shortfall would be proportionate to how far 
below the recycling rate was from the target rate.  The current system was not an 
option because of rising landfill taxes. 
 

Page 8



9 
Call In Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 30 November 2010 

David Pietropaoli (Waste Policy Manager, Environment and Neighbourhood 
Services) added than an independent review carried out on behalf of the Mayor of 
London had shown that those local authorities that used weekly kerbside sort 
collections currently achieve the lowest yield, whilst those using co-mingled 
fortnightly collections currently achieve the highest yields.  In order to maintain the 
kerbside collection to increase recycling rates, different bins for dry recycled 
materials would be required and the resulting additional costs and carbon footprint 
implications had meant this option was not feasible.  Members heard that in 
2008/09, 26 of the top 30 performing councils in England for dry recycling diversion 
rates operate a co-mingled collection service and that eight of top ten local 
authorities were using co-mingled collection methods.  He indicated that the council 
was willing to work with organisations such as Brent Friends of the Earth and 
WRAP with regard to waste and recycling.  David Pietropaoli advised that 
presentations given to at the ACFs had explained the frequency of waste 
collections.  With regard to recycled materials being sold by the contractor, he 
advised that there was a demand for recycled cardboard in the UK and for recycled 
newspaper in the UK, Belgium and Germany, whilst new markets were also 
emerging for plastics in London.  David Pietropaoli emphasised the need to take a 
holistic approach to recycling, stating that in some circumstances it may be more 
desirable for materials that could be recycled be sent abroad rather than sending 
them to landfill sites in England. 
 
Following consideration of the discussion in relation to both the Executive decisions 
made in respect of the Waste and street cleansing - street cleansing efficiency 
savings and Waste collection strategy reports, Members then agreed 
recommendations suggested by the Chair as outlined below. 
 
3.1 Waste and street cleansing - street cleansing efficiency savings  
3.2 Waste collection strategy 
 
RESOLVED:- 
 
(i)        that upon considering the reports from the Director of Environment and 

Neighbourhood Services on Waste street cleansing – street cleansing 
efficiency savings and Waste collection strategy, the decisions made by the 
Executive be noted;  

 
(ii)       that in view that the total savings projected of £1.5m exceeds the target of 

£1.2m, the Executive be requested to re-consider the frequency of street 
cleaning in Zone 5 streets and the scrapping of weekly waste collections; 

 
(iii)      that the Executive be requested to provide re-assurance that that the waste 

collection and recycling contractor be instructed to ensure that all recycled 
materials be sold within UK markets; 

 
(iv)      that the Executive be requested to re-consider using co-mingling techniques 

because of concerns raised by councillors and Friends of the Earth about 
this method and investigate whether local authorities using kerbside 
collections are achieving the council’s recycling rate targets;  

 

Page 9



10 
Call In Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 30 November 2010 

(v)       that the Executive be requested to agree to engage with relevant local 
organisations such as Brent Friends of the Earth in considering street 
cleansing, waste collection and recycling issues; and 

 
(vi)      that the Executive be requested to agree to approach Plain English 

Campaign to undertake an independent assessment of the council’s 
consultation on the waste collection strategy to determine whether a re-
consultation is necessary. 

 
4. The Executive list of decisions for the meeting that took place on Monday, 15 

November 2010  
 
RESOLVED:- 
 
that the Executive list of decisions for the meeting that took place on Monday, 15 
November 2010 be noted. 
 

5. Date of next meeting  
 
It was noted that the next meeting would be a special meeting of the Call-In 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee that was scheduled to take place on Thursday, 9 
December 2010 at 7.30 pm. 
 

6. Any other urgent business  
 
None. 
 

 
 
The meeting closed at 10.10 pm 
 
 
 
P LORBER 
In the Chair 
 

Page 10



 
Meeting 
Date  

Version no. 10 
Date  

 
 

 
Executive  

 13 December 2010 

Report from the Director of  
Housing and Community Care 

 
  

Wards affected: 
ALL 

  

Adult Social Care Direct Services Review 

 
 

1.0 Summary 
 

1.1 In July 2010 the Executive agreed to consult with service users, carers and 
stakeholders on the draft Day Opportunities Strategy as a precursor to the 
transformation of all buildings-based, directly-provided adult social care day 
services. It also agreed to consult on a number of specific proposals which were 
set out in the Learning Disabilities Information Sheet, an appendix to the strategy.   
 

1.2 The consultation process is now complete and this report sets out the results of 
the consultation, the options for transformation and a recommended course of 
action. 
 

1.3 The consultation process was carried out in three waves in August, September 
and October.  In each wave separate service user, carer and staff meetings were 
held in the 11 directly provided Day Services. In total, there were 42 consultation 
meetings. A summary of the consultation process and outcomes is attached at 
Appendix A.  
  

1.4 The consultation responses across all client groups were broadly supportive of 
the principles underpinning the strategy: personalisation and a greater focus on 
community activities. However, users and carers also wanted to retain the 
consistency of a building base service.  The main concerns raised were focused 
on implementation of the strategy.   

 
1.5 The consultation responses raised a number of significant concerns in response 

to the specific proposals in the learning disability information sheet, which was an 
appendix to the strategy.  The concerns were wide ranging, but they focused on: 

 

Agenda Item 4a

Page 11



 
Meeting 
Date  

Version no. 10 
Date  

 
 

• wanting to stay with friends and maintain current relationships 
• feeling vulnerable in the community 
• capacity and accessibility of a reduced number of Day Services 
• quality and relevance of the current assessments for people currently using 

directly provided services. 
 

1.6 Most service users did not want to see the closure of any day centres.  Carers 
also stressed how much they value the respite the day services provide them and 
were not convinced that there were enough services in the community for the 
people they care for to access. 
 

1.7 The fact that the consultation was organised in three waves meant there were 
opportunities in later waves to address issues raised earlier in the process.   
Significant concerns remain, but real examples of the benefits of Direct 
Payments, a commitment to tackle those concerns (e.g. recognising the 
importance of friends and maintaining relationships wherever the service is 
delivered) and concerns about the physical condition of the buildings meant that 
there was more appreciation of some of the specific proposals outlined in the 
learning disability information sheet.  

 
1.8 The other factors that will inform the Executive’s decision on the draft Day 

Opportunities Strategy and the learning disability information sheet proposals 
were also discussed at each of the consultation meetings.  The key factors that 
were highlighted in consultation meetings were: 

• national policy (which has a clear focus on personalisation, promoting 
service user choice and control to increase independence and lead to a 
more fulfilling life)  

• experience in other parts of the UK (where a focus on personalisation and 
community based activity have led to greater independence for service 
users and improved financial sustainability)    

• the practical implications of the condition of the current buildings (current 
health and safety concerns)  

• the current financial context and the potential impact of the Comprehensive 
Spending Review on the council’s budgets. 

 
2.0 Recommendations  
 
2.1 The Executive agrees the final version of the Day Opportunities Strategy attached 

at Appendix B. 
 

2.2 The Executive agrees implementation of Option 4 where implementation is built 
on a comprehensive and inclusive reassessment and support planning process 
for every current service user, and is subject to staff and union consultation. 
 

3.0 Day Opportunities Strategy 
 
3.1  The draft Day Opportunities Strategy reflects national policy, focused on the need 

to develop more personalised services for adults in order to promote 

Page 12



 
Meeting 
Date  

Version no. 10 
Date  

 
 

independence and help people to lead fulfilling lives, and the work that has 
already been done locally as part of the Adult Social Care Transformation 
programme.  It also reflects the One Council Improvement and Efficiency 
Strategy, which stresses the need to develop innovative services with local 
people to deliver improved outcomes in a cost effective way given the current 
financial pressures on the council. 

.  
3.2 The strategy outlines proposals for the future design of day opportunities across 

all client groups in adult social care. The principles underpinning the strategy are:  
• a move away from services delivered in buildings to a large number of 

people at the same time and towards the delivery of personalised services 
• service users will be supported to access services provided within the 

community – leisure, employment, learning and social activities - to enable 
them to contribute to the local economy and their local communities  

• we will work with partners to ensure that these services meet the needs of 
people with a learning disability 

• the role of staff will change to support the delivery of the personalisation 
agenda. 

 
3.3 The 12-week consultation process has been broadly supportive of the principles 

underpinning the strategy but not necessarily the specific practical implications of 
the strategy.  Some of the outcomes, such as greater use of Direct Payments 
were supported by some service users, but a number of general concerns have 
been raised about implementing the strategy.  For example, some service users 
and carers feel:  

• choice and community activities are better suited to younger people  
• service users are vulnerable in the community  
• they may lose touch with their friends in the centres 
• there will be less respite for carers if activities are community based  
• personalised services will be more expensive 
• private providers may be more expensive   
• the strong relationships with workers in the centre will be broken.   

 
3.4 Therefore, it is crucial whichever option is taken forward that we continue to 

improve communication and engagement over the coming months to ensure that 
we can address these and other concerns while also delivering improved 
outcomes for service users and carers.  This is particularly important in the 
current financial context, which will make implementation more challenging.  
 

4.0 Implementing Changes to Learning Disability Day Opportunity Services  
 
4.1 The learning disability information sheet was an appendix to the draft Day 

Opportunities Strategy presented to the executive in July.  It set out a draft plan 
for the transformation of all directly provided Learning Disability services in line 
with the draft Day Opportunities Strategy.   

 
4.2  The draft plan built on the significant amount of work carried out within Learning 

Disability Services over the last three years, including previous service reviews, 

Page 13



 
Meeting 
Date  

Version no. 10 
Date  

 
 

reassessments and skills audits.  It reflects the fact that teams within the service, 
service users and carers are expecting change to happen following this 
preparatory work, and it is desirable that this work begins as soon as possible 
given the uncertainty regarding day services. It also incorporates the existing 
commitment to a new facility, the John Billam Resource Centre, which will replace 
Albert Road and ASPPECTS, and the current financial pressures on the council. 
 

4.3 The draft plan was focused on bringing the six directly provided Learning 
Disability day services (Stonebridge, Projects, Strathcona, Albert Road, 
ASPPECTS and CASS) together into one purpose-built facility, the John Billam 
Resource Centre. This would be achieved through increasing levels of 
independence among service users and changing the operating model to focus 
on activities based in the community.  Currently these six services provide 
support to 295 service users (177 per day). 
 

4.4 The 12-week consultation process has raised a number of significant concerns in 
response to the specific proposals in the draft plan highlighted in the learning 
disability information sheet.   

 
4.5 Service user concerns were wide ranging. For example, they:   

• do not want to lose the day centres as meeting places, where they have 
friends 

• do not want to lose the relationship they have with their key workers  
• are concerned about travel arrangements which could become more 

difficult if services are based in the community 
• did not think there was enough space in Strathcona  
• feel vulnerable in the community. 

 
4.6  Carers concerns focused on the following:  

• changes are driven by the need to save money rather than improvements 
to the service  

• the capacity of John Billam to accommodate all Learning Disability day 
service users   

• the quality and relevance of the current assessments, and the need for 
future high quality, transparent assessments and support plans to be 
focused on the needs of individuals if the changes are to happen  

• the capacity of Strathcona and John Billam Resource Centre to meet the 
needs of those requiring a building based service 

• the need to demonstrate what a person centred plan would look like  
 
4.7  In light of these concerns, this report outlines four options for taking forward the 

Day Opportunities Strategy for directly provided Learning Disability day services.   
 

4.8 Option 1: No change – current service users, current service model in the same 
buildings.  The current revenue cost of the six directly provided Learning Disability 
day services (£3.7 million) would not change.  However, capital investment of 
£150k is required in Stonebridge to tackle immediate structural problems with 
subsidence.   

Page 14



 
Meeting 
Date  

Version no. 10 
Date  

 
 

 
4.9 There would be no impact on service users in any of the six directly provided 

services in this option as services would continue in the current service model.  
Therefore, there was support for this option from service users and carers. 
However, even if immediate structural problems are addressed, Stonebridge 
would remain unfit for purpose, and so the service would not improve.  Option 
one is not aligned to the draft Day Opportunities Strategy because it would have 
little or no impact on the levels of independence and any increase in services 
delivered in the community would lead to excess capacity in directly provided 
services, which would reduce value for money.  

 
4.10 Option 2: Improve Stonebridge – current service users, current service model in 

the same buildings, but with significant investment in Stonebridge.   The current 
revenue cost of the six directly provided Learning Disability day services service 
(£3.7 million) would not change. However, in addition to the £150k capital 
investment in Stonebridge to tackle immediate structural problems, a further 
£850k would be required to ensure the building is fit for purpose for the medium 
term.   

 
4.11  Only service users at Stonebridge would be affected by this option.  There would 

be a temporary negative impact while the building works were carried out, but 
there would be a positive medium term impact as the building would then be fit for 
purpose.   Therefore, there was support for this option from service users and 
carers. Option two is not aligned to the draft Day Opportunities Strategy because 
it would have little or no impact on the levels of independence and any increase in 
services delivered in the community would lead to excess capacity in directly 
provided services, which would reduce value for money. 

  
4.12 Option 3: Buildings based, community focused service – increase levels of 

independence by 10 per cent and close Stonebridge but retain Strathcona.  This 
option would reduce the revenue cost of the service by £635k (17 per cent) as 
well as releasing £1.3 million (capital) from the sale of Stonebridge.  This option 
ensures two learning disability, buildings-based, day services (Strathcona and 
John Billam) are retained in the medium term.  It has been developed to reflect 
concerns raised in the consultation, in particular the importance of day centres as 
a key meeting place, which allows service users to maintain important 
relationships in a safe environment.   

 
4.13 In this option eligible service users from Stonebridge and Projects would move to 

the Strathcona site.  There would be no reduction in service for eligible service 
users.   Currently, 232 service users are supported by these three services, but 
only 114 service users per day access a buildings-based service. The ‘per day’ 
figure reflects the fact that a significant number of service users either do not 
attend every day or access employment on a daily basis, but it does not reflect 
the fact that some service users may not be eligible for the service any more.  
The Strathcona facility has a capacity of 130.  There would also be minimal 
impact on service users at ASPECTTS because their service is currently provided 
on the Strathcona site, but in a different building.   

 

Page 15



 
Meeting 
Date  

Version no. 10 
Date  

 
 

4.14  If this option is agreed, implementation would be built on a comprehensive and 
inclusive reassessment and support planning process for every current service 
user.  The process would be aligned to the principles underpinning Valuing 
People and co-designed with service users and carers.  It would be based on 
current unmet needs, a transparent application of eligibility criteria and reflect 
service user aspirations. The outcome would be a personalised package of 
support for eligible service users focused on outcomes that support people to 
lead independent and fulfilling lives.  This would be delivered through a Personal 
Budget that may or may not include directly provided day services as appropriate.   
This process would also be designed to ensure that service users and carers 
have more information about any changes. Therefore, there was support for this 
option from service users and carers.  

 
4.15  This option is aligned with the draft Day Opportunities Strategy because of the 

focus on person centred planning and increased levels of independence and 
community based activity.  It would also deliver improved value for money 
because the reduction in overall capacity in directly provided services would 
ensure that excess capacity is minimised.  The potential, identified in the 
consultation, to use other Council buildings more flexibly to provide additional 
capacity, for example New Millennium, also offers additional service options to 
ensure value for money.    

 
4.16 Option 4:  Implement the draft plan as set out in the Learning Disabilities 

Information Sheet – increase levels of independence by 30 per cent and create a 
community based service model.  This option would reduce the cost of the 
service by £1.068 million (29 per cent) as well as releasing £2.9 million (capital) 
from the sale of Stonebridge and Strathcona.  This option reflects the original 
draft plan set out in the learning disability information sheet.   

 
4.17 In this option Strathcona will close when John Billam Resource centre is 

completed which is likely to be early 2012. Service users will move to Strathcona 
following the closure of Stonebridge in early 2011. All service users will receive a 
comprehensive and inclusive reassessment and support planning process and 
this option is dependent on the successful shift to alternative community based 
services. 

 
4.18 In this option the John Billam Resource centre would provide the buildings base 

for those who need it although, as outlined above, the consultation has identified 
the potential to use other council buildings more flexibly to provide additional 
capacity and improved value for money, for example New Millennium.  All service 
users of directly provided service would be affected by this option.   

 
4.19  Significant concerns were raised about this option during consultation. The two 

key concerns were the capacity of John Billam, which as a buildings-based 
service has a capacity of 60, and the fact that planning for this option is based on 
reassessments done over the last two years, which may no longer be valid.  
These are genuine issues, which have been addressed in three ways in the 
planning:  

Page 16



 
Meeting 
Date  

Version no. 10 
Date  

 
 

• As in Option 3, implementation would be built on a comprehensive and 
inclusive reassessment and support planning process focused on the 
individual needs and outcomes of service users  

• The capacity of the John Billam Resource Centre will be greatly increased 
if the service becomes a community based service and service users are 
only there for a part of the day 

• The consultation identified, as stated above, the potential to use other 
council buildings more flexibly to provide additional capacity and improved 
value for money, for example New Millennium. 

 
4.20  This option is completely aligned to the draft Day Opportunities Strategy because 

it would be implemented through person centred planning, it would increase 
levels of independence significantly and would make the service predominantly 
community based.  It would also deliver improved value for money because the 
reduction in overall capacity in directly provided services would ensure that 
excess capacity is minimised.   

 
 
5.0 Co-production, continuing communication and engagement 
 
5.1 Continued engagement with service users, carers, staff and other stakeholders 

will be crucial to the successful implementation of any of the options outlined 
above.  As outlined above a co-designed process of reassessment and support 
planning would be central to this, but the communications plan, which has been 
revised and is attached at Appendix C for information, outlines the full breadth of 
communication activity which will be delivered.  

 
6.0 Financial Implications  
 
6.1 This report considers four options for taking forward the Day Opportunities 

Strategy for directly provided learning disability day services. The details of these 
options are set out at section 4 of this report.  

 
6.2 The current revenue costs of the six directly provided Learning Disability Day 

Services is £3.7m per annum.  
 
6.3 The capital and revenue impact of each option, together with the estimated 

capital receipt(s), are set out in the following table:- 
  

 
 
Option 

 
 
Description 

 
Revenue 
£000 

 
Capital 
£000 

Capital 
Receipt 
£000 

1 No change but address subsidence 20 150 0 
2 No change, Stonebridge fit for purpose 71 1,000 0 
3 Close Stonebridge -635 0 -1,300 
4 Close Stonebridge and Strathcona -1,068 0 -2,900 

 
 Options 1 and 2 will both require capital investment that is not currently in the 

Council’s budget. As this capital investment is unfunded, there will be a revenue 

Page 17



 
Meeting 
Date  

Version no. 10 
Date  

 
 

impact (not budgeted) arising from the associated debt charges (interest and 
principal repayment). It should be noted that the costs of financing are based on 
the Council’s current estimate of 5% annuity, and this is subject to change. 
Options 3 and 4 both generate revenue savings for the Adults Social Care 
Budget, and will also generate a useable capital receipt for the Council. The 
savings are the full year effect, and take account of staffing, running costs and 
redundancy costs where applicable. 

 
6.4 The estimated timing and cumulative impact on the revenue budget for each 

option is set out in the following table:- 
  

 
 
Option 

 
 
Description 

 
2011-12 
£000 

2012-13 & 
ongoing 
£000 

1 No change but address subsidence 20  20  
2 No change, Stonebridge fit for purpose 71  71  
3 Close Stonebridge -635  -635  
4 Close Stonebridge and Strathcona -635  -1,068  

 
  
7.0 Legal Implications 
 
7.1 Guidance issued by the Department of Health requires that the Local Authority 

“provide, whether at centres or elsewhere, facilities for occupational, social, 
cultural and recreational activities and, where appropriate, the making of 
payments to persons for work undertaken by them” to those who qualify for 
services under s29 of the National Assistance Act 1948 or s2 CSDPA 1970. The 
Local Authority also has a power to provide such services where necessary to 
promote the welfare of older people under s45 of the Health Services and Public 
Health Act 1968. The Local Authority will need to demonstrate that the chosen 
option does ensure sufficient facilities will be available for occupational, social, 
cultural and recreational activities to both current and future services users and 
that these can be accessed by individual services users. The move towards 
personalisation of adult social care does not affect the duties set out in legislation; 
however the increased use of existing community resources rather than 
specialized separate provision is not prohibited by legislation or government 
guidance.  

 
7.2 The Executive is reminded that they are required to approach the outcome of any 

consultation objectively and in a fair manner.  Care should be taken to ensure that 
all groups with protected characteristics as defined by the Equality Act 2010 are 
consulted and their concerns given due regard. The proposals should set out how 
these concerns will be addressed.   

 
7.3 As a public authority, the Council has general duties to promote 

equal opportunities relating to race, disability and gender and to remove 
discrimination.  These duties are set out in the: 
 

• Disability Discrimination Act 2005 (DDA 2005); 

Page 18



 
Meeting 
Date  

Version no. 10 
Date  

 
 

• Equality Act 2006; 
• Equal Pay Act 1970; 
• Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000 (RRAA 2000);and 
• Sex Discrimination Act 1975. 
• Equality Act 2010 

 
Currently the DDA 2005 requires public authorities, when considering disabled 
people, to promote positive attitudes towards disabled people and take positive 
steps, even if that involves treating disabled people more favourably than others. 
 
To provide guidance on the duty there is a Statutory Code of Practice.  The 
general duty is not absolute but it does require authorities in respect of all their 
functions to give due regard to disability equality. 
 
The core general duties are similar for race and gender i.e.: 
 

• To promote equality of opportunity; and 
• To eliminate harassment and unlawful discrimination. 

  
From April 2011 part 11 of the Equality Act 2010 will be in force requiring that the 
local authority remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by those with a 
protected characteristic under the Act. It must also take steps to meet the needs 
of persons with a protected characteristic. In particular for disabled persons this 
includes taking steps to take account of their disabilities (s149(4)) and to 
encourage persons with a protected characteristic to participate in public life or in 
any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low. 
The increased reliance on existing community based services rather than 
separate specialist services should meet these objectives provided there is 
evidence that the community resources do adequately take into account the 
disabilities of the various services user groups in such a way that they can readily 
access the facilities. The Executive will need to consider whether each option in 
line with the duties detailed within the DDA and Equality Act 2010. In 
demonstrating that due regard has been given to the duty to promote equality of 
opportunity and to eliminate harassment and unlawful discrimination that 
Executive must demonstrate a “substantial rigorous and open-minded approach” 
to the duty.  
 
The local authority’s Single Equality’s Scheme requires consultation and an 
impact assessment for this change in policy. This should focus not only on the 
number of people to be affected, but also consider the degree of impact on those 
actually affected.  
 
At present the local authority must comply with the Equality Act 2010 when 
providing services. Under this Act age is now a protected characteristic and 
therefore particular care needs to be considered to the impact that the proposals 
will have on the elderly to access services if these are to be based primarily in the 
community rather than at the specialist centres. Carers are not a protected group 
but it is worth considering whether the impact on carers would have an adverse or 

Page 19



 
Meeting 
Date  

Version no. 10 
Date  

 
 

significant impact on those they care for and their ability to access facilities and 
services if these are to be based primarily in the community.   
   

8.0 Diversity Implications 
 
8.1 The Day Opportunities Strategy and the specific proposals for learning disability 

services are designed to deliver a more personalised service, which recognises 
individual needs and supports service users to access the support and services 
they need and want in the community. This will enable them to become 
participants in their local communities and develop networks and support as close 
to home as possible. 

 
8.2 The Equality Impact Assessment (attached at Appendix D) that was written during 

the consultation confirms that the draft Day Opportunities Strategy will create a 
more positive approach to diversity, ensuring that individual needs, whatever they 
may be, are addressed to give people more control over the way they live.  This is 
also reflected in the focus on person centred planning as the foundation of the 
implementation of any major changes to the service. 

 
9.0 Staffing Implications 
 
9.1 As the original Executive report highlighted, the draft Day Opportunities Strategy 

requires a significant change in working practices in all directly provided day 
services to create a clear focus on personalised support delivered in the 
community wherever possible. Staff are being supported in this change.  For 
example, most staff have already undertaken the New Ways of Working training 
course. This change in culture and practice will continue over the coming months. 

 
9.2 In each of the three waves of consultation, staff in all directly provided services 

have been consulted on the strategy and the draft plan outlined in the learning 
disability information sheet.  However, they were not formally consulted on the 
impact on their posts. Therefore, they are aware of the strategy and the potential 
implications of the specific proposals outlined in the learning disability information 
sheet. While concerns were raised about the impact on jobs and the readiness for 
implementation, there was broad support for the direction of travel. 

 
9.3 The options outlined above will have different impacts on the numbers, roles and 

skills required to deliver personalised services in directly provided services. If the 
Executive decides to close services (options three and four), there will be an 
impact on staff and this will be subject to full consultation. 

 
Background Papers 
Putting People First: DH policy December 2007 
Living Well with Dementia: a national strategy for dementia services, 
Department of Health, February 2009 
Valuing People Now: a new, three-year strategy for people with learning disability, 
Department of Health 2009  
Duty to Promote Disability Equality: Statutory code of Practice (England and 
Wales) 

Page 20



 
Meeting 
Date  

Version no. 10 
Date  

 
 

 
Appendices 

A. Summary of Consultation response and outcomes 
B. Draft Day Opportunities Strategy 
C. Direct Services Communication Plan 
D. Equalities Impact Assessment 

 
Contact Officer 
Alison Elliott  
Assistant Director Community Care  
Housing and Community Care 
Mahatma Gandhi House 
Telephone: 020 8937 4230 
Email: alison.elliott@brent.gov.uk 
 
Martin Cheeseman  
Director of Housing and Community Care 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

Adult Social Care Direct Services 
ReviewReview

Consolidated Learning Disability 
Consultation Report November 2010

1

P
age 23



Contents

Contacts 3

Executive summary 4

Day Opportunities Strategy 5

Background to Consultation 7

2

Background to Consultation 7

Lesson Learnt 9

Responses to Concerns Raised 12

Conclusion 18

P
age 24



Contacts

Senior Responsible Officer
Alison Elliott
Assistant Director Community Care
Alison.Elliott@brent.gov.uk

Special Projects Manager
Nancie Alleyne

3

Nancie.Alleyne@brent.gov.uk

Head, Learning Disability Service
Alison Armstrong
Alison.Armstrong@brent.gov.uk

Head, Care Management and Review
Senel Arkut
Senel.Arkut@brent.gov.uk

P
age 25



Executive Summary

• In July 2010 the Executive agreed to consult with service 
users, carers and stakeholders on the draft Day 
Opportunities Strategy.  

• The consultation was undertaken in three waves and 42 
consultation meetings were held at 8 locations.

• The report’s key messages addresses the concerns • The report’s key messages addresses the concerns 
raised at the consultation meetings.

• This report consolidates (for learning disabilities) the 
previous three consultation reports, which are available 
on Brent’s Website, on the draft Day Opportunities 
Strategy. It also incorporates the need for the current day 
services to change to meet national policy objectives and 
local improvement. 

4

P
age 26



Draft Day Opportunities Strategy 
•• The Day Opportunities Strategy was drafted on the basis The Day Opportunities Strategy was drafted on the basis 

of national policy which is focused on the need to of national policy which is focused on the need to 
develop more personalised services for adults in order to develop more personalised services for adults in order to 
promote independence and help people to lead fulfilling promote independence and help people to lead fulfilling 
lives.  It also draws on the work that has already been lives.  It also draws on the work that has already been 
done as part of the Adult Social Care Transformation done as part of the Adult Social Care Transformation 
programme, and the One Council Improvement Strategy, programme, and the One Council Improvement Strategy, programme, and the One Council Improvement Strategy, programme, and the One Council Improvement Strategy, 
which stresses the need to develop innovative services which stresses the need to develop innovative services 
with local people to deliver improved outcomes, whilst with local people to deliver improved outcomes, whilst 
ensuring that this is done in a cost effective way.ensuring that this is done in a cost effective way.

•• The strategy outlines proposals for the future design of The strategy outlines proposals for the future design of 
Day Opportunities across all client groups in adult social Day Opportunities across all client groups in adult social 
carecare

5

P
age 27



Draft Day Opportunities Strategy 
• The principles underpinning the strategy are 

– A move away from services delivered in buildings to 
large numbers of people at the same time, towards a 
more personalised approach.

– To support service users to access services provided 
within the community e.g. leisure, employment, within the community e.g. leisure, employment, 
learning and social activities to enable them to 
contribute to the local economy.

– Working with partners to ensure services meet the 
needs of people with learning disabilities. 

– To change the role of staff to support the delivery of 
the personalisation agenda.

6

P
age 28



Background to the Consultation
• The proposed service model was explained through a 

series of consultations and focused workshops on the 
draft Day Opportunities Strategy which included the 
benefits to individuals of personalised services as 
described within the proposed strategy.

• At each day centre, Brent Council Community Care • At each day centre, Brent Council Community Care 
officers spent approximately 2 hours at each event with 
service users to hear their view on and concerns about 
the proposed changes to day centre and service re-
designs. After a presentation of the proposed plans 
(wave 1), all service user groups split into smaller groups 
for facilitated discussion on the proposed strategy and 
what impact it would have on individuals and service 
users groups.

7

P
age 29



Background to Consultation(2)
• A leaflet with the key messages of the strategy in Plain 

English and Easy Read was available at each meeting 
for users and carers as well as a draft copy of the draft 
Day Opportunities Strategy.

• Service users responses and questions were captured 
by scribes on flipcharts. In addition to key workers, 
advocates were present to assist service users advocates were present to assist service users 
expressing their views at the Strathcona and 
Stonebridge day centres. Projects users were also 
consulted with advocates present.

• Translators and British Sign Language (BSL) signers 
were also available when needed.

• ASPPECTS and Albert Road service users sessions had 
a different format to adjust to the different levels of need 
and capacity.

8

P
age 30



Lessons Learnt 

SERVICE USERS WAVE 1
• Not to continue to consult  with users with very complex needs as it had been difficult 

to obtain meaningful information with this group. 
• To have Projects and Stonebridge service users consultation structured separately 

and in smaller groups so that everyone’s concerns and comments could be heard 
and captured.

• Where necessary to extend the time given to users at the consultation meeting so 
that everyone had the opportunity to have their say.

SERVICE USERS WAVE 2SERVICE USERS WAVE 2
• To answers concerns and questions raised at the Students Council as part of the 

consultation meetings.
• To have the day centre managers and carers help facilitate the Wave 3 consultation 

meetings. 
• To have pictures available to improve communication and understanding.

SERVICE USERS WAVE 3
• It was important that users could speak to the Assistant Director for H&CC 

individually and this happened at the end of some of the sessions
• To ensure effective communication is an ongoing process.

9

P
age 31



Lessons Learnt 
CARERS WAVE 1

• To change the venue for Stonebridge & Project Carers to allow for increased 
attendance.

• To give carers the opportunity to either have a discussion in a large group for the 
whole session or to break out into smaller facilitated groups for part of the session.

• To consult with Albert Road and ASPECTS carers together as they had additional 
concerns relating to the plans for the John Bilham Resource Centre. 

• To have the Wave 2 meetings during the day so that carers who could not attend the 
evening events could attend during the day.

• To ensure lead member representation at Wave 2 consultation meetings.
CARERS WAVE 2CARERS WAVE 2

• To have case studies for carers to gain a better understanding of how their relative 
can spend their day.

• To have carers whose relative had been receiving day care and had changed to direct 
payments available to explain their experience and provide advice and information.

• To talk, call, write, and invite individual carers to come and personally discuss their 
issues with H&CC officers.
CARERS WAVE 3

• The need to ensure the continuous engagement and effective communication with 
carers and to be open and transparent throughout the next stages within the project.

• For carers to be involved in the future planning following the decision by the 
Executive in December. 10

P
age 32



Lessons Learnt 
STAFF WAVE 1

• To ensure HR representation at all future meetings so that questions related to the 
impact of the strategy could be addressed.

• To meet with the PCT/BCS to address the concerns relating to CASS.

STAFF WAVE 2

• To join some of the staff and management sessions together as staff said that they all • To join some of the staff and management sessions together as staff said that they all 
worked as a team.

STAFF WAVE 3

• To build on the willingness and enthusiasm of staff to continue to explain the strategy 
to users and answer their concerns in conjunction with officers from H&CC.

11

P
age 33



Response to Service Users Concerns 

• Most users do not want Stonebridge to close, or to move into Strathcona.

Stonebridge  building needs a  lot of repair which the council could not afford.  

Service users could do the same activities at Strathcona day centre and could 

take all their personal things to Strathcona..

• Many users feel attached to the day centres as social meeting places.

If the strategy is agreed then all users will move to Strathcona together.  You 

will still be with all your friends. If Strathcona closes we will support you to stay 

12

will still be with all your friends. If Strathcona closes we will support you to stay 

with your friends in the community

• They are concerned about transport arrangements and being a burden on 

carers when going out into the community.

There will be no changes to your transport if the strategy is agreed. Brent 

transport will still provide a service but will take you to Strathcona and not 

Stonebridge.  If Strathcona closes we will ensure you can use transport to use 

community activities.

P
age 34



Response to Service Users Concerns 
Many feel vulnerable in the community

It is important to us that you continue to be and feel safe.  The plan is that you will be 

doing community activities together with your friends and key workers and will feel and 

be safe with people you know and work with.

There was a concern about the cost of community activities

There is also a cost associated with attending the day centre.  Many activities are also 

offered at a reduced cost or are free. i.e. swimming concessions and attending libraries 

13

and museums.

By wave 3 consultation meetings users were getting a better understanding that 

Stonebridge Day Centre may close and were discussing future plans like organising their 

last Christmas party at Stonebridge and asking what facilities would be available at the 

new centre.

Many users said that they has already spent time at Strathcona in the past and enjoyed 

it then although they preferred the meals at Stonebridge.

Some uses expressed some desire to expand their choice in community activities e.g. 

photography, football and cookery whilst at Strathcona.

P
age 35



Reponses to Carers Concerns  

Key themes

• Carers oppose the closure of Stonebridge and the move into Strathcona.

This was noted.

• They are concerned about capacity and safety at the John Billam Centre.

The strategy will only work if people choose to take up their activities in the 

community.

• They are worried about how the changes would affect the service users, and 

14

• They are worried about how the changes would affect the service users, and 

about getting the same level of respite for carers as currently

A  transition plan will be developed to support users and everyone will receive 

the same level of services providing they meet FACS criteria.  This will be the 

same for carers.

• Concerns about the day centres being run down and not providing the 

stimulation the service users need.

Younger people are choosing not to attend a day centre but to take up a direct 

payment or go to college.  

P
age 36



Reponses to Carers Concerns (2)

Key themes

The choice of activities and support to users at the day centre does need to 

improve

• Concern about managing Direct Payments.

There is support for this. Anyone who needs help can get it either through the 

Direct Payment Support Service or by talking to their Care Manager

15

• Who will decide who goes to John Bilham.  

John Billham is being built for those users attending Albert Road and 

ASPPECTS day centre anyone who meets the FACs criteria requiring a 

building base will be supported by Adult Community Care.

• The loss of friends in which service users have made.

Users will move to Strathcona and John Bilham together with their friends.  If 

they choose to do things in the community their support plan will be structured 

so that they remain with their friends in the community if they want to.

P
age 37



Response to Staff Concerns

Key themes

• Staff are concerned about the impact of the plans on staff structure, new role 

descriptions, place of work, pay pensions etc.

As the consultation was focused on the draft Day Opportunities Strategy it was 

difficult to discuss how staff structures will change and the impact it would have 

16

on staff terms and condition of service.  Once a decision is made at the 

Executive  in December H&CC staff will come back to discuss the implication  

of the decision. 

• Was the community ready for their service users.

Work is being done around brokerage and market stimulation to ensure uses 

can access the types of activities they are requesting to undertake.  Further 

discussions are being held with Employment Support Providers and with local 

colleges. 

P
age 38



Response to Staff Concerns (2)
Key themes

• That some users did not want to move to Strathcona Day Centre.

Nobody will be forced to go anywhere.  This is about choice and we will be 

assessing all users to establish their level of need and how they would like to 

spend their day and with whom.

17

P
age 39



CONCLUSION
The consultation responses across all client groups were 
broadly supportive of the principles underpinning the 
strategy (personalisation and greater focus on 
community activities) however, users and carers also 
wanted to maintain a building base and the services the 
day centre provides with greater choice of activities.
In the main users, carers and staff did not want the In the main users, carers and staff did not want the 
Stonebridge Day Centre to close but some users and 
carers were beginning to accept the possible change to 
their lives. 
Most people want better quality services with greater 
choice.
People are concerned about service users being isolated
Service users want to remain with their friends at the day 
centres 18

P
age 40



 

Day opportunities Strategy  1 
Version: DRAFT v3.0 

Appendix B     
 
 

BRENT ONE COUNCIL 

DAY OPPORTUNITIES STRATEGY  
2010-2012 
07/07/2010  
Version: Final 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 41



 

Day opportunities Strategy  2 
Version: DRAFT v3.0 

 Contents 
 
 
Executive Summary ........................ Error! Bookmark not defined.Error! Bookmark not defined. 
1. Introduction .................................................................................................................... 4 

1.1 Approach ....................................................................................................................... 4 
1.2 Drivers for change .......................................................................................................... 5 

2. Vision ............................................................................................................................. 8 
2.1 Choice and control .......................................................................................................... 8 
2.2 Mainstream and community based services ..................................................................... 8 
2.3 Brent Adult Social Care’s commitment ............................................................................. 8 

3. Benefits .......................................................................................................................... 9 
3.1 Service quality improvements .......................................................................................... 9 
3.2 Financial sustainability .................................................................................................. 10 
3.3 Local and national policy alignment ............................................................................... 11 

4. Delivering the vision and benefits ................................................................................... 13 
4.1 Improve the customer journey ...................................................................................... 13 
4.2 Redesign current day services ........................................................................................ 13 
4.3 Stimulate the market .................................................................................................... 13 
4.4 Engage and involve ....................................................................................................... 14 

Appendix - Learning Disabilities information sheet .................................................................. 15 
 

Page 42



 

Day opportunities Strategy  3 
Version: DRAFT v3.0 

Executive Summary 
 

Brent Council Adult Social Care will enable vulnerable people to access more diverse 
community-based day activities so that they can choose more independently how they 
work, learn and enjoy leisure and social activities 

 

Brent Council Adult Social Care believes that people who have a social care need have the 
right to lead their lives like everybody else, with the same opportunities and 
responsibilities, and to be treated with the same dignity and respect. Brent’s Adult Social 
Care transformation programme is designed to make this a reality for the people of Brent. 
This strategy presents an overarching vision for people with learning and physical 
disabilities and vulnerable older people. 

 

Vision National policy and local strategy advocate that services for vulnerable people 
should be personalised and community-based thereby promoting service user choice and 
control to help develop independence, and to build skills. The proposed new service model 
is consistent with this policy and will help to deliver improved outcomes for local vulnerable 
people by increasing their participation in mainstream and community-based services. 

 

Benefits Many services are currently delivered as a ‘one size fits all’, building-based model. 
These will need to change to ensure that a more flexible range of services are available to 
achieve outcomes for users and carers. These services will be delivered in the community 
as appropriate by a range of organisations and professionals, which individuals can access 
by using their personal budgets. This will deliver three core benefits: service quality 
improvements, financial sustainability as well as national and local policy alignment. 

 

Delivering the vision and benefits In order to deliver the vision and the benefits Brent 
Council will need to improve the customer journey, redesign current day services, stimulate 
the market and engage and involve service users and carers. Across client groups the 
successful implementation of the strategy will be achieved through the combined effects 
of: 

• Improving assessments to determine the level of support needed; 

• Delivering community-based day activities from resource centres as a base;  

• Improving access to mainstream services and commissioning new ones; and  

• Engaging and involving users, carers and other stakeholders in all of the above. 

 

 

 

Page 43



 

Day opportunities Strategy  4 
Version: DRAFT v3.0 

1. Introduction 
 

1.1 Approach  
 

Brent Council Adult Social Care believes that people who have a social care need have the 
right to lead their lives like everybody else, with the same opportunities and 
responsibilities, and to be treated with the same dignity and respect. Brent’s Adult Social 
Care transformation programme is designed to make this a reality for the people of Brent 

 

This strategy is an important part of the adult social care transformation and has been 
drafted to frame the transformation of day opportunities services for:  

• People with Learning Disabilities (LD); 

• People with Physical Disabilities (PD); and 

• Older People (OP). 

 

This document applies to everyone who uses day opportunity services, or requires 
additional support. Brent Council Adult Social Care provides services to people with a 
‘critical’ or ‘substantial’ social care need, but is also committed to providing improved 
information and advice about social care support to everyone who can benefit from this 
information.  

 

To identify the different levels of support people require we have used four levels of 
independence: 

1. Highly independent; 

2. Independent with some support;  

3. Independent with support; and 

4. Independent with significant support. 

 

This strategy is not focused on eligible needs and services, but on people and outcomes 
such as:  

• Having the opportunity to engage in meaningful activities; 

• Improving and extending social networks; 

• Spending time in an integrated or mainstream setting; and 

• Learning, and earning money.  

 

Therefore, it is structured around the activities that underpin such outcomes:   

• To enjoy leisure and social activities (leisure); 

• To learn (education); and 

• To work (employment). 

 

Page 44



 

Day opportunities Strategy  5 
Version: DRAFT v3.0 

The table below outlines how this focus can provide a different way of looking at the 
activities that should be available to everyone with a social care need and the support that 
different people might need to access those activities.  Brent’s aim is to ensure that all 
these activities are open to all, and that the support required to access them is minimised 
to ensure people are as independent as possible.  
  

 Leisure Education Employment** 

1. Highly 
independent 

• Independent access to full 
range of options 

• Brent Council to provide 
signposting, information and 
advice 

• Mainstream education 
• Brent Council to provide 

signposting, information and 
advice 

• Paid employment 
• Brent Council to provide 

signposting, information and 
advice 

2. Independent with 
some support 

• Independent access to 
mainstream services 

• Brent Council to provide 
preparatory and organisational 
support 

• Community-based education 
with some support 

• Brent Council to provide 
preparatory and organisational 
support 

• Support to access either paid 
or unpaid employment 

• Brent Council to provide 
preparatory and organisational 
support 

3. Independent with 
support 

• Brent Council to support to 
access to full range of options 
recognising individual needs 

•  Appropriate use of supported 
travel escorts 

• Mainstream and non-
mainstream courses  

• Brent Council to support 
people to access these 
courses in the community 

• Work experience 
• Brent Council to provide 
support towards paid 
employment 

4. Independent with 
significant support 

• Brent Council may provide 
intensive support for access to 
mainstream and specialist 
services 

• May require specialist 
transport 

• Brent Council to enable people 
to access courses delivered in 
resource centres as 
appropriate 

• Brent Council to enable people 
to access work-related 
activities 

*Education activities for Older People are usually not qualification oriented 
** Employment activities for Older People are dependent on their preference and desire to engage in these activities, and 
are not part of the current activities offered to Older People 

 

1.2 Drivers for change  
Day opportunity services have been changing for the last 20 years. These changes have 
regularly been given fresh impetus by initiatives such as Direct Payments and Putting 
People First. However, the majority of day opportunity services in Brent are still traditional 
building-based services. This means that day opportunity services are still a barrier to 
achieving genuine choice and control for people in Brent.  

 

Service user context  

National and local consultation has shown that two significant changes are needed to 
improve outcomes for service users and carers and give people genuine choice and control. 
Firstly, people need a wider range of options to choose from and these options must 
include both specialist (sometimes building-based) and mainstream (in and with the 
community) services. Secondly, in order to create this choice, Councils need to focus more 
on commissioning and developing new services in the community and less on delivering 
traditional building-based services themselves.  

 

Currently, day services for vulnerable people in Brent focus on providing activities in 
specialist day centres on weekdays. In addition project-based services outside day centres 
have been developed for people with Learning Disabilities to enhance employment skills. 
Transport to and from these day centres is often provided free of charge through specially 

Page 45



 

Day opportunities Strategy  6 
Version: DRAFT v3.0 

commissioned transport. Because these services are focused on special buildings and are 
often block contracted, they make it more difficult for people to make individual choices 
about what support and services would best meet their own need. 

 

Local authority context  

Brent Council Adult Social Care is committed, as part of the Adult Social Care 
Transformation, to providing the day opportunity services people need. For example, 
mental health service have been configured to meet a need for more diverse and 
community-based day services. 

 

Brent Council is also committed, as part of the OneCouncil Improvement and Efficiency 
programme, to achieving service transformation. The aim of the programme is to ensure 
that the Council is a more efficient, effective and streamlined authority, capable of 
providing local people with excellent, innovative services that deliver improved outcomes 
even within the financial constraints of the current economic climate. 

 

The number of people with profound 
physical and learning disabilities is 
expected to increase further in the 
future as medical advances mean that 
more people with a disability survive 
into adulthood.  For example, a study 
by the Centre for Disability Research 
(2009) concludes that in an average 
area of England with 250,000 
residents, the number of adults with 
profound multiple learning disabilities 
receiving health and social care 
services will rise from 78 in 2009 to 105 
in 2026. These rates are expected to be 
higher in communities such as Brent 
that have a younger demographic 
profile, or contain a greater proportion 
of citizens from Pakistani and 
Bangladeshi communities as these tend 
to have higher prevalence rates.  

 

However, many young people with a 
disability choose not access day 
opportunities currently provided at Brent’s day centres. They access a range of community-
based provision at colleges, third sector organisations and mainstream activities with 
support (see case studies on page 10/11). Therefore, over time, a reduction in numbers 
attending the day centres and a drop in activity is expected. 

 

Mental Health services in Brent have already moved away from 
a building-based model and now successfully provide a socially 
inclusive ‘community network’ service. Users mostly access 
mainstream services in the community with some activities, such 
as independent living skills, being provided in a centrally-located 
rented space. This is a big change from the previous building-
based institutionalised model, and user satisfaction has 
improved significantly through participating in mainstream 
services, ranging from yoga to international scrabble 
competitions. 

 

Key success factors for the transformation of mental health 
services include a large-scale consultation process with users, 
carers and staff; the re-training of staff to focus on enabling 
independence; providing staff with clear new job descriptions; 
and offering users special classes on accessing mainstream 
services and a list of user-friendly places in Brent. Services are 
regularly reviewed on the degree of social inclusiveness 
achieved. 

 

Once the services moved out of the buildings, the change really 
took hold. As people had the first positive experiences with 
community-based services, such as courses at the local college, 
this reinforced the enthusiasm of other initially more sceptical 
users. The mental health day services transformation has been 
cost neutral and the throughput of users has increased since the 
introduction of the new model. Staff levels have stayed the 
same. 

 

Page 46



 

Day opportunities Strategy  7 
Version: DRAFT v3.0 

National context 

Recent social care policy has focussed on the need to develop more personalised services 
for adults, which will provide greater choice for individuals, help to promote their 
independence and enable them to improve their quality of life.  

Putting People First: a shared vision for the transformation of adult social care (2007) 
requires a move away from traditional building-based services and block contracts to a 
more personalised service delivery model, providing:  

• Better access to mainstream services and a clearer focus on developing social 
capital to ensure social inclusion;  

• Improved early intervention and prevention; and  

• Greater choice and control which allows people to maximise their independence 
through services and support they choose.  

 

The Putting People First personalisation agenda is also reflected in a wide range of other 
national strategy and policy documents for people with Learning and Physical Disabilities 
and Older People; for example, Valuing People Now; Improving the Life Chances of Disabled 
people; and A new ambition for old age respectively. 

 

Improving the Life Chances of Disabled people (PMSU, 2005) aims to bring disabled people 
fully within the scope of the ‘opportunity society’. By supporting disabled people to help 
themselves, a step change can be achieved in the participation and inclusion of disabled 
people, which is what this strategy aims to achieve. 

 

A new ambition for old age (DH, 2006) sets out the policy direction for vulnerable older 
people, underlining the importance of increased choice and control over older people’s day 
activities. The aim is to ensure that older people and their families will have confidence that 
in all care settings, older people will be treated with respect for their dignity and their 
human rights. This includes increasing choice and independence in the type of day activities 
older people engage in. 

 

Page 47



 

Day opportunities Strategy  8 
Version: DRAFT v3.0 

2.  Vision  
 

Brent Council will ensure there are more diverse and community-based day activities for 
vulnerable people, so they have genuine choice about how they work, learn, and enjoy 
leisure and social activities.  

 

2.1 Choice and control  
For the majority of people in society, their days are characterised by the routines of either 
work or structured activity. This is equally valid for people with a learning or physical 
disability and vulnerable older people.  For all of us, our lives are more meaningful if we 
have the ability to make choices and can achieve variety and change. Brent Council will, 
therefore, seek to ensure that as far as possible people plan their own days, using a mix of 
Council funds if they are eligible, and other financial resources available to them.  

 

2.2 Mainstream and community based services  
In order to work, learn and enjoy leisure and social activities alongside everybody else, 
while living their lives in safety, Brent Council will develop further opportunities for people 
to access mainstream services, such as adult education, leisure centres and public 
transport.  
 

The starting point for any service user should always be to access mainstream activities. 
People with a higher level of dependence may be best served by specialist services, but 
there is no reason that these cannot be delivered by mainstream or independent providers 
in the community. Not only does this improve choice and independence, it also encourages 
vulnerable people to take part in the local community as equal citizens.  For example, adult 
education for people with learning and physical disabilities is usually delivered in day 
centres. Yet many service users could attend college alongside other learners with the 
appropriate preparation or support.   

 

2.3 Brent Adult Social Care’s commitment  
Brent Council will continue to ensure that people receive appropriate support to access 
mainstream and community-based services. This includes maintaining local bases from 
which people can access different community-based activities. In addition, we recognise 
that for some people, it will be important that a more stable and structured day service is 
provided to ensure safety and stimulation. 

Page 48



 

Day opportunities Strategy  9 
Version: DRAFT v3.0 

3. Benefits 
 

Brent’s day opportunities strategy will deliver service quality improvements, financial 
sustainability and policy alignment by 2012. 

 

Enabling access to more diverse community-based 
day activities for vulnerable people to choose more 

independently how they work, learn and enjoy leisure 
and social activities

Service quality 
improvements Financial sustainability National and local policy 

alignment

Vision

Benefits

 
 

 

3.1 Service quality improvements 
More diverse and community-based day services will drive quality improvements in Brent’s 
day services for users, carers and staff.  

 

Improved outcomes  

People will be able to access a wider 
range of purposeful day services better 
aligned to their needs, which will lead to 
more fulfilling and independent lives in 
the community. Greater choice, 
independence and inclusion in the local 
community will achieve improved results 
on outcomes for service users as 
identified in Putting People First: 

• Exercise maximum control over their 
own life and where appropriate the 
lives of their family members; 

• Sustain a family unit which avoids 
children being required to take on 
inappropriate caring roles; 

• Participate as active and equal 
citizens, both economically and socially; 

• Have the best possible quality of life, irrespective of illness or disability; and 

• Retain maximum dignity and respect. 

“I am 19 years old and I live at home with 
my parents and my 2 younger sisters. I am 
autistic and have a moderate learning 
disability. I enjoy doing lots of things in the 
community. For me being an autistic person 
means that I need to be active and engaged 
most of the time, so having a busy and 
varied weekly plan is important to me. 
 
During the week, I attend the college of 
North West London for four days a week. On 
Wednesdays I stay at home with my personal 
assistant to develop my independent living 
skills, such as housework and cooking. I also 
go swimming in the evening.  
 
On the weekend, I like to go to swimming, 
drama, music, use computers and go 
shopping.” 
 

Page 49



 

Day opportunities Strategy  10 
Version: DRAFT v3.0 

 

Staff motivation and performance are also 
expected to increase while delivering day 
services in a more effective way. An 
integrated team with increased skills and 
knowledge, trained in new ways of 
working is expected to drive service 
improvements. The CASS case study (see 
page 17) and the Mental Health 
community networks (see page 7) show 
that employees are more engaged when a 
service model is in place that aims to 
support people to access mainstream 
and/or community-based activities. 

 

Increased user satisfaction  

Local user surveys and national best 
practice examples show that most users 
are keen to take part more in mainstream 
activities where possible.  

 

User satisfaction is, therefore, likely to 
increase through a wider variety of 
activities which are conducted for example 
at mainstream facilities or with a wider 
group of people. Having a higher degree of 
ownership and choice of day activities is 
also likely to improve quality of life for day 
services users.  

 

3.2 Financial sustainability 
Providing more community-based day services will also allow the Council to provide 
financially sustainable services.  

 

Increasing independence  

This strategy is focused on giving people the support they need to lead more active and 
independent lives. Service users will be supported to access services provided within the 
community – leisure, employment, learning and social activities. Brent is committed to 
supporting people to become more independent and, therefore, reducing the amount of 
support they need. 

 

The more independent the individual is the less support he or she will need to access 
mainstream or community-based activities. Highly independent users may be able to access 
mainstream services without much support, while others may need some organisational 

 “Steve is 20 years old and has Multiple 
Sclerosis. Previously he was in a residential 
school and he returned home to Brent to live 
with his very supportive family. He would like 
to live his life as normally as possible and has 
started his University course full-time in West 
London in September last year.  
 
He receives Direct Payments which pay for 
13 hours of learning support. He identified 
that it was important for him to do well at 
university and that he needs help and 
support to participate fully.   
 
Steve likes to maintain his independence as 
much as possible, and employing his own 
support worker enables him to do this.” 

 “Meron is a 77 year old widow from Somalia 
who suffers from diabetes, hypertension and 
arthritis. She has been in England since 1999 
after her husband was killed in the Civil War.  
 
She receives Direct Payments and buys 
support with her medication, meals and 
personal care from Red Sea, an organisation 
that provides Somalian care workers. 
 
Meron is delighted that she can have control 
over her support and speak Somalian with 
the care workers (as she does not speak 
English). She also prefers not to have to rely 
on her daughter anymore.”    
 

Page 50



 

Day opportunities Strategy  11 
Version: DRAFT v3.0 

and preparatory support. Less independent people can go out into the community as part 
of a supported group, while some will need one-to-one support. Independence levels for 
each service user will need to be assessed carefully to determine the appropriate level of 
support. 

 

Estate consolidation 

The proposed strategy brings opportunities to reduce the number of council-owned 
buildings and/or provide a wider variety of services from them. Increasing the community 
element of day services will mean fewer people will use the buildings, while in addition a 
wider range of activities could be offered from them across client groups and the wider 
population. 

 

Less independent people will continue to use day centres regularly, but more independent 
people will only use the centre as a base or meeting point to go out to community-based 
activities (if they use it at all). In addition, in the future the focus on community-based 
activities and a much wider range of options will mean buildings could be used by more 
than one or all client groups and the wider population.  

 

3.3 Local and national policy alignment 
Personalised and community-based day services are in line with local and national policy, 
focused on service quality improvements, financial sustainability and local planning. 

 

National policy alignment 

Brent’s day services will offer more choice, control and independence for service users in 
line with Putting People First and specific policy for Learning Disabilities, Physical Disabilities 
and vulnerable Older People. 

 

Introducing more diverse and community-based day activities as set out in this strategy 
meets priorities outlined in Valuing People Now (DH, 2007) for people with Learning 
Disabilities: Personalisation, and What People Do During the Day (and Evenings and 
Weekends). 

 

The Valuing People Now Personalisation priority sets out that people should have real 
choice and control over their lives and services, which Brent Adult Social Care aims to 
achieve through offering more diverse activities through mainstream and community-based 
services. The What People Do During the Day priority sets out that people should be helped 
to be properly included in their communities, with a particular focus on paid work. This will 
be achieved through increasing the mainstream and community provision of day services. 

 

Similar priorities are set out in Improving the Life Chances of Disabled people (PMSU, 2005) 
and A new ambition for old age (DH, 2006). 

 

Page 51



 

Day opportunities Strategy  12 
Version: DRAFT v3.0 

Local policy alignment 

Whilst national policy has been a significant driver in shaping this change, local issues have 
been equally important in developing this new approach to the delivery of social care 
services. 

 

The One Council Improvement Strategy and the need for Brent to make significant 
efficiency savings over the next three financial years have meant that Adult Social Care 
must develop excellent, innovative services for local people that deliver improved 
outcomes, whilst ensuring that this is done in an efficient, cost effective way. This strategy 
sets out to realise both aims as described in the sections above. 

 

In addition, service provision is proposed to be moved to central Brent in line with the 
South Kilburn Master Plan which has the overall goal of the regeneration of South Kilburn. 
The proposed vacation of Albert Road day centre in particular will help realise this aim.  The 
proposed new John Bilham Resource Centre will be purpose-built and conveniently located 
so that it is easily accessible across the borough. 

Page 52



 

Day opportunities Strategy  13 
Version: DRAFT v3.0 

4. Delivering the vision and benefits 
 

In order to deliver the vision and the benefits Brent Council will need to improve the 
customer journey, redesign current day services, stimulate the market and engage and 
involve service users and carers 

 

4.1 Improve the customer journey  
Brent Adult Social Care’s Personalisation – Customer Journey project is preparing to make a 
number of changes which will improve the customer journey for everyone with a social 
care need. These improvements will mean:  

• People who do not have an eligible need will have improved access to information 
and advice about community-based and mainstream support in Brent; and 

• People with an ongoing eligible social care need will have a Personal Budget (PB) 
with greater freedom to choose which services and support they use, and improved 
support to make those decisions.  

 

In both cases the information, advice and support will not be focused on what have 
traditionally been described as ‘day services’, but on the activities, opportunities and 
support which will help people to meet their outcomes.  

 

In addition, regular assessments will take place to determine the appropriate level of 
support for people eligible for Council support. This will ensure that people are enabled to 
contribute as much as possible to the local economy and their local communities. 

 

4.2 Redesign current day services   
Brent Adult Social Care directly provides a significant number of day opportunity services to 
vulnerable people. A wide range of day opportunity services are also provided in the private 
and voluntary sectors. All of these services will need to be reviewed to assess to what 
extent they meet the vision outlined in this strategy, so it is clear how they are meeting the 
needs of service users and carers and providing value for money. See Appendix for more 
details on the current service provision for Learning Disabilities. Similar plans will be 
developed for Older People and Physical Disability services within the coming year. 

 

The focus of the operating model of all internally provided day services for vulnerable 
people would be on providing additional support to people accessing community-based 
and mainstream opportunities. Service users attending the day centres will have further 
assessments of their needs relating to the services they would like to access in the future. 
The role of staff would change accordingly to support the delivery of more personalised 
services. 

 
4.3 Stimulate the market  
In addition to the redesign of existing services, work will also need to start on stimulating 
the broader market. The aim is to provide people with options to engage in meaningful 

Page 53



 

Day opportunities Strategy  14 
Version: DRAFT v3.0 

activities, spend time in integrated or mainstream setting, improve and extend social 
networks, and earn money and learn. This will mean undertaking specific initiatives to:  

• Improve access to mainstream services – mainstream services offer a significant 
amount of choice already and also promote social inclusion and the development of 
social capital. In many cases, it is not that mainstream services cannot meet the 
needs of people with social care needs, but that there are barriers to accessing 
those services such as restricted access. Therefore, there must be a clear focus on 
removing those barriers working with public and private sector partners to ensure 
people can use these services; and  

• Commission new services – there will still be a need for additional services, such as 
specialist services and services that enable users to make more use of mainstream 
and community services. Brent Adult Social Care will maintain its role in working 
with service users, carers and partners to identify these gaps in the market and find 
ways of filling them. In addition, we will engage with suppliers to discuss the 
potential for new and innovative service provision. 

 

4.4 Engage and involve  
Brent Adult Social Care cannot deliver this strategy alone. The vision and strategy needs to 
be owned by service users, carers, the public, staff, current providers and partners. Young 
people do not choose to attend traditional day services and some existing service users 
have indicated they would benefit from accessing more support within the community. 

 

Although this would indicate positive initial support for the above service model, 
significantly more engagement and consultation will be required with service users and 
carers on the plans before implementation. Successful delivery, which means improved 
outcomes for the people who access this support and improved value for money for 
taxpayers, can only be achieved by engaging and involving all relevant stakeholders. 

 

A consultation on this strategy with service users, carers and staff is planned to start as 
soon as the strategy is signed off. The consultation will take 12 week and will focus on 
gathering feedback on the proposed changes to day services across the three client groups. 
This feedback will then be presented to the Executive of the Council for a final decision on 
the Strategy. 

Page 54



 

Day opportunities Strategy  15 
Version: DRAFT v3.0 

Appendix - Learning Disabilities information sheet 
 

Brent Adult Social Care will transform the current day opportunity services to provide 
greater choice for people with a learning disability to ensure they are able to achieve the 
outcomes they set for themselves in education, work and leisure.  

 
The implementation plans for the strategy have been developed furthest for Learning 
Disability services because most of the directly provided day centres in Brent are for people 
with a Learning Disability. In addition, there is an urgent need to provide alternative 
accommodation for Stonebridge users as the building is no longer fit-for-purpose. Similar 
plans will be developed for Older People and Physical Disability services within the coming 
year. 
 
Baseline  
Internal day services for people with Learning Disabilities in Brent are currently provided 
across six internal sites, each providing services for people with varying levels of need for a 
total budget of £3,700,000 in 2009/2010. In addition external providers offer day services 
for a total of £1,900,000. 

 

Four out of the six current sites provide mainly building-based day activities for users with a 
range of independence levels. Only CASS and Projects regularly provide community-based 
activities.  

 

Leisure and education activities are provided at Albert Road, CASS, ASPPECTS, Strathcona 
and Stonebridge. In addition, some specialist day services for 100 people that cannot be 
met in-house are provided through the independent and voluntary sector. Local further 
education providers such as the College of North West London, BACES and East Berkshire 
College deliver accredited educational and vocational courses at the day centres.  

 

Employment activities are provided through the Projects service. Transport arrangements 
are in place for each of the sites so that users can access the services from their homes or 
residential care. 

 

Assessments conducted at Strathcona and Stonebridge show that the majority of service 
users would prefer more community-based activities as proposed in the strategy. More 
than half of users would like to increase community-based activities such as leisure, travel, 
education and employment. 29% of users prefer a combination of building- and 
community-based activities, while 24% prefer to move activities out to the community 
completely. 

 

The number of users preferring community-based services may further increase after the 
services have been introduced and users have become more familiar with them. Previous 
consultations that taken place over the past years with Learning Disability service users, 
carers and staff, have indicated that people may be worried about change. However, when 
the mental health day services for example moved to the community networks model, 

Page 55



 

Day opportunities Strategy  16 
Version: DRAFT v3.0 

people become more enthusiastic in particular after the service actually moved out of the 
day centre buildings completely and they actually experienced the benefits of the new 
service model. 

25

30

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

Other (includes 
community-based only 
and a combination of

54%

Building-based activities

46%

N
u

m
be

r o
f u

se
rs

Preference for type of activities of current service users
(Strathcona and Stonebridge)

Includes:
•Leisure
•Travel
•Education
•Employment

 
 
Delivering the change and benefits 
 
Improve the Customer Journey 

People with a Learning Disability will either have improved access to information and 
advice about mainstream and community activities, or when they are eligible for Council 
support they will have a Personal Budget to choose the services and support they need.  

 

The latter category will be regularly assessed on their level of independence to ensure they 
receive the appropriate support to meet their outcomes and enable them to contribute as 
much as possible to the local economy and 
their local communities. 
 

Service Redesign of Directly Provided Day 
Services   

Brent Council Adult Social Care will 
operationalise a new Resource Centre 
model re-designing the delivery of day 
services by providing a base for community 
activities for all those able to participate. 
Those who are independent with significant 
support will still go to the centre for 
building-based activities. 

Case study  
Community day services for people with 
Learning Disabilities 
 
CASS (Community Activity Support Services) 
provides day services for fifteen people with 
learning disabilities and complex needs. The day 
centre works as a small base at the Willesden 
Community Hospital from which staff supports 
people to go out into the community for activities. 
People go swimming, shopping or to a football 
match, and individual preferences are met 
whenever possible. 
 
Both staff and users are very supportive and 
enthusiastic about the model and prefer the 
community based approach to the previous building 
based one. 
 

Page 56



 

Day opportunities Strategy  17 
Version: DRAFT v3.0 

 

The aim is to improve outcomes for service users, carers and staff through consolidating 
estate and increasing independence among service users.    

 

1. Estate consolidation  

Through the increase in community-based and mainstream activities, Council-owned 
buildings are proposed to be rationalised to focus on one purpose-built new building, the 
John Bilham Centre. This will be the single centre for all directly provided Learning Disability 
activities and the consolidation will happen over a number of phases.  

 

The first phase is being driven by the need to 
close the Stonebridge site (which includes 
Stonebridge and Projects) and find a more fit 
for purpose building.  Users from Stonebridge 
and part of the Projects users are proposed to 
move into Strathcona at the end of 2010 to 
improve service conditions. Service users at 
Projects would be supported to access either 
mainstream employment services, or 
employment services currently commissioned 
by the Council from third sector organisations. 
The Shared Lives Adult Placement Scheme 
could be utilised to ensure that carers help 
support people to access community-based 
activities during the day. 

 

The second proposed phase is to move CASS service users into Albert Road and adopt the 
community-based approach of CASS for all service users. The third proposed phase will be 
the consolidation of all directly provided day services in the John Bilham Resource Centre in 
2011. People from Albert Road, ASSPECTS and Strathcona are to move to the John Bilham 
Resource Centre when it opens in December 2011.  

 

2. Increasing Independence  

The operating model is proposed to be reviewed and transformed for all directly provided 
day opportunity services so that they are focused on providing additional support to people 
accessing community-based and mainstream opportunities. Service users attending the day 
centres will have further assessments of their needs and help in identifying the support that 
would best meet that need in the future. This should improve service quality outcomes as 
more independence and choice would lead to increased levels of user satisfaction as people 
feel they have more control over their daily activities. Also, increasing independence allows 
for a less building-based approach to day services and therefore enables to consolidation of 
the current estate as proposed above.  
 

Stimulate the market  

Brent Council LD Day Centres

Learning Disability

Stonebridge

Strathcona

2010

CASS

Albert Road

ASSPECTS

John Bilham Resource Centre
To be opened Dec 2011

Projects

Page 57



 

Day opportunities Strategy  18 
Version: DRAFT v3.0 

In addition to the redesign of existing services, work will also need to start on stimulating 
the broader market. The aim is to provide people with options to engage in meaningful 
activities, spend time in integrated or mainstream setting, improve and extend social 
networks, and earn money and learn. This will be achieved through improving access to 
mainstream services as well as commissioning new services, including supporting users to 
make more use of mainstream and community services. 

 

A similar approach to making mainstream services more accessible could be taken for 
Learning Disability as for Mental Health day services. The Mental Health community 
networks initially focused on a number of key activities to move to mainstream provision.  
For example, mental health users as a first step started following courses at the College of 
North West London. For Learning Disabilities, conversations are already ongoing to design a 
more personalised approach, which could be funded through the Skills Funding Agency, and 
could as a next step be delivered at the College rather than the day centre.  

 

Engage and involve  

Service users, carers and other stakeholders will be consulted on the Day Opportunities 
Strategy, and the LD proposals in particular, to ensure a service model that is fit for the 
needs of current and future service users. We will work with service users, carers, staff, 
current providers and partners to identify gaps in current provision, targeting new 
opportunities which will increase choice and meet the needs of people with a Learning 
Disability. 

 

 
 

Page 58



Appendix C

Direct Services
Communications Plan

DraftDraft

Brent Council
July 2010

P
age 59



Document control

London Borough of Brent
Direct Services
Document title: Communications Plan

Author(s):  Matt Huxley

Reviewer(s): Alison Elliot, Phil Porter, Nancie Alleyne, Martin GavinReviewer(s): Alison Elliot, Phil Porter, Nancie Alleyne, Martin Gavin

Version: 2.0

Status: Draft

Date: Nov 2010

P
age 60



Background

• Direct Services Transformation is the London Borough of Brent’s project to transform the 
delivery of direct or in house services to people with learning disabilities.  

• Through it, the council plans to consolidate its various day services and increase 
independence, customer choice, realising more personalised services.  

• Through version one of this document, the council engaged with users and carers through 
three waves of consultation. Regular discussions were held with members and MPs, and three waves of consultation. Regular discussions were held with members and MPs, and 
service provider organisations. Over the coming months, this will increase as staff, service 
users, partners and stakeholders are involved in changing how learning disability services are 
delivered in Brent.

• Version two (this version) of the Communications Plan outlines how the council will use 
communication to facilitate understanding and support for the transformation of day services 
to people with learning disabilities. Our current plans build on feedback and experiences 
gained during the consultation period.

• The Communications Plan is continually updated as the project develops. 

P
age 61



Communications and Engagement Plan Objectives

• To ensure that internal and external stakeholders are engaged and supportive of the Direct 
Services project, why it is needed and how Brent Council expects to take the transformation 
forward. To carry out all communications in line with Valuing People recommendations.

• To ensure that key stakeholders are engaged and supportive of the transformation changes, 
and how they can contribute to the transformation of our services, making effective use of 
service user forums and advocates where appropriate including the Partnership Board.

• To enable service users and carer views and feedback to be taken on-board to influence the 
planning of communications events as well as the decisions made and direction taken about 
the project as a whole.

• To ensure staff across Brent Council understand how business transformation links with 
business as usual to ensure external stakeholders receive a seamless service.

• To communicate the Direct Services project and wider transformation programme to meet 
the objectives of the corporate communications and consultations strategies which enhance 
Brent Council’s reputation in the local and national media where appropriate. 

P
age 62



Communication principles

Principles 

Confirm understanding 
- Not just awareness

Manage expectations
actively -

Not passively

Visible support -
Not “do as I say”

Principles 
underpinning 
effective 

communication
Be receptive -
Not defensive

Surface concerns -
Not suppress them

Create demand -
Use the grapevine -
Not try to control it

Tailor communications -
Not one size fits all

P
age 63



Gaining commitment through communication

" I have to do it this new 
way"

Compliance

Reaction
" I will react to this change –if I must"

Commitment
" I want to do it this new way"

Mandate

The Stakeholder Commitment Curve

The challenge of change management is to move stakeholders up the commitment curve to the point where they are committed to 
the success of the program and willing to alter the way they behave to support new ways of working. Communications forms a vital
role in this.

" I will react to this change –if I must"
Testing

" I must absorb this change”

Negative perception

" I feel threatened by this change"

Understanding

" I know why and what will change”

Awareness

" I am being told about something"

Acceptance

" I will act to achieve this change"

Announcement day

P
age 64



Key Messages

P
age 65



Key messages – Aims and Objectives

• Brent Council wants to make it easy for vulnerable people to take part in more varied activities so that 
they can have more of a say in how they work, learn and enjoy leisure and social activities.

• The council believes people who have a social care need have the right to lead their lives like everybody 
else, with the same opportunities and responsibilities, and to be treated with the same dignity and 
respect. 

• Brent’s Adult Social Care transformation is designed to make this a reality. It presents an overall vision for 
people with learning and physical disabilities and vulnerable older people.people with learning and physical disabilities and vulnerable older people.

• The council wants to make sure that the day services meet the needs of service users, now and in the 
future. 

• Our proposals reflect national policy, which says that services for vulnerable people should be tailored to 
their individual needs and based in the community, rather than in day centres and similar buildings. These 
services will be delivered by the same organisations that everyone else uses and people can pay for them 
using their personal budgets. Personal budgets are paid to service users and their carer.

• Experience in other parts of the UK shows that this will improve services by promoting choice, control and 
independence. It also helps to make services more financially sustainable for the future as public spending 
becomes more tightly controlled.

P
age 66



Key messages – Direct Services

• The plans for learning disability (LD) services are the most advanced because most day centres in Brent are for 
people with a learning disability. Users of Stonebridge and Projects urgently need new accommodation as the 
buildings are not fit for purpose.  Similar plans will be developed for older people and physical disability services 
within the coming year.

• Brent Council proposes to build the new John Bilham Resource Centre as a base for all LD day opportunity 
activities in the community. More people will go to a different service independently or with a support worker 
rather than go to the resource centre. The council will need fewer buildings to deliver day services. There will be 
better access to information and advice about mainstream and community activities. better access to information and advice about mainstream and community activities. 

• When they are eligible for council support people will have a personal budget to choose and pay for the services 
and support they need. Their personal plans will be regularly reviewed to make sure that they receive the 
support they need to participate as much as possible in the local community and economy.

• Brent Council will create more opportunities to take part in meaningful activities in the community.  The council 
will buy new services and work with local providers such as the College of North West London to improve access 
to mainstream services.

P
age 67



Key Messages - Transition

• The proposal is that the move into the John Bilham 
Resources Centre will happen in several stages: 

– Users from Stonebridge and Projects will move into Strathcona 
at the end of 2010. People at Strathcona, and at ASPPECTS, will 
then receive a review of the support they need in order to 
participate in community activities. 

– At the same time, CASS service users will use Albert Road as a 

Brent Council LD day centres

Learning Disability

John Bilham Resource Centre

3

– At the same time, CASS service users will use Albert Road as a 
base and all users will adopt the CASS community approach 
and receive a review of the support they need.

– The third phase will be to re-design the way day services are 
provided.

– The fourth phase will be all services moving to the John Bilham 
Resource Centre at the end of 2011 for the remaining service 
users to use as a base.

Stonebridge

Strathcona

CASS

Albert Road

ASPPECTS Projects 1

2

P
age 68



Communication and consultation activity to date

P
age 69



Consultation and communication with service users

Event Attendees Planning Session description Lesson learned/feedback

Formal 
Consultation -
Wave 1 
Consultation
from 2nd to 
11th August

Wave 2 
Consultation

• Service users 
with learning 
disabilities, 
physical
disabilities, 
and older 
people

• Initial planning 
carried out by 
Project Group 
and Service User 
and Carer 
involvement 
worker

• Input sought at 

• Meetings  (2 hours) at the nine Learning Disability, Physical 
Disability and Older People day centres where Brent Council 
provides services
• Information was carefully designed to match the needs of the 

groups attending meetings and included key messages and the 
Day Opportunities strategy
• Information was initially presented orally and then service user 

groups split into smaller groups for a facilitated table 
discussion (format was changed to accommodate users with 

• Users expressed similar 
concerns over the three 
waves of consultation 
• However, those who 

attended more than one 
session tended to change 
their views as they increased 
understanding of the 
Council’s positionConsultation

from 9th to 
23rd

September

Wave 3 
Consultation 
from 5th to 
18th October

• Input sought at 
Waves 1 and 2 
and used to 
design the 
subsequent 
sessions

• Advocates 
played a 
significant role 
in designing the 
sessions and 
materials across 
all waves

discussion (format was changed to accommodate users with 
learning disabilities)
• Service user responses and questions were captured by scribes 

on flipcharts
• In addition to key workers, advocates were present to assist 

service users in expressing their views at the Strathcona, 
Stonebridge, Projects and New Millennium meetings
• Translators, British Sign Language (BSL) signers  and speech 

therapists were also available when needed to increase 
communication to and from users
• Advocates were present and able to use Makaton to increase 

communication with LD users with complex needs
• One to one meetings were held with officers and advocates to 

elicit further information where requested

Council’s position
• During Wave 1 at Westbrook, 

the consultation was adapted 
and instead individual 
meetings facilitated by 
voluntary groups were 
scheduled to meet users 
needs
• Feedback from the session 

indicated smaller groups 
encouraged better 
communication
• Advocates most effective 

when involved as early as 
possible in the planning 
process

P
age 70



Communication and consultation with carers and additional 
service user support

Event Attendees Planning Session description Lesson learned/feedback

Wave 1 
Consultation
from 2nd to 11th

August

Wave 2 
Consultation
from 9th to 23rd

September

Wave 3 

Carers for 
service users 
with 
learning 
disabilities, 
physical
disabilities, 
and older 
people

• Initial planning carried out 
by Project Group and 
Service User and Carer 
involvement worker

• Input sought at Wave 1 and 
2 carer meetings and used
to design subsequent 
meetings

• Meetings (2 hours) held to hear their views on 
and concerns about the proposed service re-
design
• Information in form of presentation, plenary 

question and answer and facilitated small 
group sessions
• A leaflet with the key messages of the strategy 

in plain English and easy read was available to 
all users, as well as a copy of the Day 
Opportunities Strategy and the online 
questionnaire

• Carers did not initially fully 
understand the concept of 
personalisation and to improve 
this case studies were sought 
and a user who received direct 
payments brought along to 
answer questions
• Carers understanding of the 

reasoning behind the council’s 
decision improved across the 
waves even if they did not all Wave 3 

Consultation 
from 5th to 18th

October

questionnaire
• A palantypist recorded all discussion, which 

were projected live on a screen
• Translators were available when needed
• One to one meetings were held with officers 

and advocates to elicit further information 
where requested
• Lead Member attended carer meetings and 

answered questions

waves even if they did not all 
explicitly support the project 
aims
• Carers who were particularly 

engaged were encouraged to 
facilitate small group sessions; 
this was successful and 
increasingly occurred through 
the consultation

Additional 
service user 
communication

Key workers 
and service 
users

• Feedback from session 
indicated further 
communication through 
key workers would be 
beneficial

• Key workers attended briefing sessions on 
communication materials and held sessions 
with users informally over period of 
consultation and continue to be a key source 
of information

• Ongoing 

Individual carer 
meetings

Officers and 
carers

N/A • Written communication to all carers who 
wrote with concerns. Where carers had 
significant concerns additional support was 
provided in the form of telephone call or one-
to-one meetings

• Ongoing

P
age 71



Communication with Members,  MPs, and providers

Event Attendees Session description Lesson learned/feedback

• Lead member 
briefings

• July 2010 
follow up 
meetings 
monthly

• Lead Member, 
officers

• Full written and oral briefing with 
Lead Member

• The need to communicate more regularly with Lead 
Member to ensure continually up to date – important 
that Member can answer Q&As on an ongoing basis 
from residents and carers

• Leader Briefing • Leader, press, 
officers

• Full written and oral briefing with 
Leader briefing with press  
including Q&A

• Consultation briefings complete. Ongoing

• Local political 
party monthly 
meeting

• Local political 
politicians 

• Presentation and Q&A session to 
cross party Members

• Consultation briefings complete. Ongoing

• Providers • Four main provider 
groups 

• Specially designed sessions aimed 
at providers

• Information in form of 
presentation, plenary question and 
answer

• Good understanding and support for council’s plans
• Service providers began turning up to carer meetings so 

this special session was designed to accommodate them 
• Discussion was wide and varied and covered significant 

feedback on areas to improve service now and in future 
and how to involve other external stakeholders in 
successful delivery of the project e.g. Colleges

P
age 72



Communications approach

P
age 73



Communications Approach

The consultation report and feedback gathered from consultation 
events will feed into the executive report considered by Members. 
On the basis of this report, Members will make a decision as to 
whether the Direct Services project will go ahead in its current 
form.

Following the decision by Members, a revised Communications 
Strategy will be taken forward. The remainder of this document 
assumes the project will continue and sets high level 
communications objectives for each stakeholder group based on 
feedback from the consultation process.

Consultation 
process; Waves 

1,2 & 3 

Consultation 
Report and 
Feedback

Executive Report 
decision

Revised 
Communications 

Strategy and 
Messages

Revised Action 
Plan

On request one-to-ones with carers

Key worker communication to service user

Regular communication with Members and MPs

P
age 74



High level stakeholder analysis Nov 2010

P
age 75



Group A – stakeholders directly affected by the changes

Stakeh
olders

Current
understanding

Main concerns Key messages How to engage Desired Outcomes Likely
champions

Service 
users -
LD

• High level 
understanding 
of Day Services 
Strategy and 
project

• Loss of day centres 
as place to meet 
socially

• Concerned over 
transport 
arrangements for 
other services

• Concerned about 
transition to 
other/more 
general services in 
wider community

• Brent Council wants to make it easy for 
vulnerable people to take part in more varied 
activities
• SDS and DS will promote choice, control and 

independence
• More people will go to a different service 

independently or with a support worker rather 
than go to the resource centre
• There will be better access to information and 

advice about mainstream and community 
activities
• The council will buy new services and work with 

local providers such as the College of North West 

• Plain English written and 
pictoral information

• For more complex needs 
increased simplification and 
physical communication of 
messages (through 
locations)

• Briefing sessions with Key 
workers

• Student Council 
• Advocate involvement in 

designing info and briefing 
sessions

• Users understand 
rationale for DS
• Users feel positive

about accessing 
different services and 
confident these will 
meet their needs

• Individual 
users

local providers such as the College of North West 
London to improve access to mainstream services

sessions

Carers • High level 
understanding 
of Day Services 
Strategy and 
project

• Change motivated
primarily by saving 
money 

• Concerned over 
safety and capacity 
in John Bilham

• Level of respite for 
carers

• Impact on service 
users

• Brent Council wants to make it easy for 
vulnerable people to take part in more varied 
activities
• SDS and DS will promote choice, control and 

independence
• DS will make services financially sustainable for 

the future as public spending becomes more 
tightly controlled
• Users of Stonebridge and Projects urgently need 

new accommodation as the buildings are not fit 
for purpose

• Plain English written 
information

• Formal letter informing of 
decisions and changes

• Briefing sessions with Q&A

• Carers understand 
rationale for DS
• Carers support move 

to SDS and impact 
that will have on 
users

• Individual 
carers

Staff 
working 
in Day 
Centres

• High level 
understanding 
of Day Services 
Strategy and 
project

• Changes of 
jobs/roles

• Impact on service 
users

• John Bilham
capacity

• SDS offers greater choice and control for users 
and more financial sustainability
• Some jobs will change. Staff will be involved in 

designing the new system and we will consult 
extensively around HR implications
• The council will look to reduce spend on 

temporary staff first before looking at 
requirements for permanent staff

• Team meetings
• Briefings
• Monthly email
• Unions

• Staff understand 
rational and support 
move to SDS

• Staff support DS 
project as in best 
interests of users

• Staff understand DS 
will make future 
services financially 
sustainable

• Change
champions

P
age 76



Group B – stakeholders indirectly affected by changes and 
required to act 

Stakeholders Current
understanding

Main concerns Key messages How to engage Desired Outcomes Likely
champions

Unions • Awareness of 
national agenda 
and national union 
stance. Uncertainty 
over local 
workforce 
implications

• Changes/loss of 
job and 
redundancies

• Self directed support offers greater 
choice and control

• Staff will be involved in designing 
the new system

• We will consult extensively around 
HR change

• Briefing/consultation • Awareness of DS
• Understanding of HR 

implications

Staff working 
in housing 
and 
community 
care

• Awareness of 
national agenda

• Uncertainty around 
implications

• Meeting duty of 
care

• Changes/loss of 
jobs

• Skills/ training 

• Direct Services offers greater
independence, choice and control 
for users

• We will be working closely with 
partners to ensure new system is 

• Workshops with managers 
and staff

• Team meetings to cascade 
messages

• Written 

• Staff understand 
council rationale for 
DS

• Staff support move to 
SDS as best thing for 

• Individual
managers 
within 
discrete 
teamscare • Skills/ training 

implications
• Changes required 

in their specific 
services

partners to ensure new system is 
joined up and user receive seamless 
transition

• Written 
communications(newsletters
/email/website)

• Briefing/ feedback sessions 
to encourage 2 way 
communication

SDS as best thing for 
users

• Awareness of service 
based changes for 
seamless service 
delivery

teams

Key partners
- Health
trusts, PVI 
Sector, Brent 
Community 
Services

• Awareness of 
national agenda

• Uncertainty around 
implications for 
local partnership 
working

• Impact on joint 
working/teams/go
vernance/budgets

• Direct Services offers greater
independence, choice and control 
for users

• We will be working closely with 
partners to ensure new system is 
joined up and user receive seamless 
transition

• Briefings at partnership 
meetings

• Written info pack
• Consultation

• Partners sign up to DS 
vision

• Partners understand 
opportunities to 
deliver services 
differently

• Partner 
‘champions’

P
age 77



Group B – stakeholders indirectly affected by changes and 
required to act 

Stakeholders Current
understanding

Main concerns Key messages How to engage Desired Outcomes Likely
champions

Members,
MPs and Local 
Politicians

• Initial engagement 
begun –
understanding varies
according to current 
level of involvement 

• Meeting duty of 
care

• Impact on budget 
• Potential for bad 

news stories

• SDS and DS will promote choice, 
control and independence
• Services will become financially 

sustainable for the future as public 
spending becomes more tightly 
controlled
• Users of Stonebridge and Projects 

urgently need new accommodation 
as the buildings are not fit for 
purpose

• Regular personal briefings 
with portfolio holder and 
Leader

• Written information to MPs
• Presentation at local party 

monthly meetings
• Presentation to overview and 

scrutiny
• Briefing to Cabinet

• Understanding of positive 
impacts for service users

• Understanding of 
requirement for 
financially sustainable 
services

• Members who feel 
confident dealing with 
public on Direct Services

• Portfolio
holder 
(Ruth 
Moher)

Providers –
current and 

• Understanding of 
day opportunities 

• Less control over 
financial planning/ 

• Providers who are innovative could 
attract more business

• Briefings sessions
• Written info pack

• Providers identify
opportunities presented 

• Key 
providerscurrent and 

potential
day opportunities 
strategy 

• Low level 
understanding of 
future service 
delivery 
opportunities

financial planning/ 
forecasting

• Significant 
changes to
business models 
may be required

• Costs of 
administration 
could increase

attract more business
• We will work with providers to 

support the transition

• Written info pack
• Consultation
• Engagement through 

provider fora

opportunities presented 
by DS

• Providers see themselves 
as key partners in the 
delivery of new and 
innovative care solutions 
and take part in planning

providers

P
age 78



Group C – stakeholders indirectly affected by changes without 
the need to act

Stakeholders Current
understanding

Main concerns Key messages How to engage Desired Outcomes Likely champions

Council workforce • Limited awareness 
of national agenda

• Inconsistent 
understanding of 
impact of DS and 
SDS in Brent, inc 
timescales and 
workforce 
implications

• Confusion as to what 
the changes mean

• Changes to
jobs/increased 
workloads

• Impact on service 
users

• DS offers greater
independence choice 
and control for users

• DS puts delivery of 
services on a more 
sustainable financial 
footing

• We will continue to 
meet duty of care

• Written 
communications 
(newsletters/email/web
site)

• Town hall/leadership
meetings

• Understanding of 
rationale for DS 
project

• Council workforce 
think SDS is the right 
thing to do for 
service users

• Corporate
change/comms

Brent residents • Very little 
understanding

• People being cared 
for properly

• DS offers greater
choice and control 

• Briefings/consultation
• Local media articles

• Understanding of 
Council rationale for 

-
understanding for properly

• Impact on Council 
Tax/Value for money

choice and control 
for users

• DS puts delivery of 
services on a more 
sustainable financial 
footing

• Local media articles Council rationale for 
DS

• Support for SDS 
positive impacts for 
service users

DCLG • Awareness of 
national agenda

• Uncertain of local 
plans 

• Feasibility of roll out 
within timeframes

• Negative impact on 
service users

• DS executed in 
timely fashion with 
proper user 
consultation

• Written communication • Continuing support 
from CLG

-

P
age 79



Appendix

P
age 80



Direct services transformation
Consultation schedule – wave 1

August 2010

P
age 81



Overview (1/3)
Date Centre Group Time Resources

Mon 2/8

Strathcona & 
ASPPECTS

Address: 
5 Stracthcona Road
Wembley HA98QR

a. Strathcona 
users (60 approx)

10.45am-12.15pm
•Presenter: Alison
•Facilitation: Nancie, Fay, Fran

•Scribes: Bola, Nisha, Owen
•Advocates: Rita, Sharon

b. ASPPECTS 
users (12 approx)

1.30-3pm
•Facilitation: Key workers
•Project officer support: Nancie

•Speech and Language 
assistant: Jennie

c. Staff 
(15 approx)

3.30-5pm
•Presenter: Alison
•HR support: Nancie

•Note taker: Peter Kendal

d. Managers 
(2 approx)

5-5.30pm
•Presenter: Alison
•HR support: Nancie

•Note taker: Peter Kendal

e. Carers 
(40 approx)

6-8pm
•Presenter: Alison
•Facilitation: Nancie, Fay, Fran

•Note taker: Palen typist

a. Users 
10.45am-12pm

•Presenter: Alison
•Assistants: key workers
•Speech and Language 

24

Tues 3/8

Albert Road

Address: 
Albert Road
NW65DE

a. Users 
(30 approx)

10.45am-12pm
•Presenter: Alison
•Facilitation: Nancie/Fran/Fay

•Speech and Language 
assistant: Jennie

b. Staff 
(12 approx)

3.30-5pm
•Presenter: Alison
•HR support: Nancie

•Note taker: Gayle

c. Managers 
(2 approx)

5-5.30pm
•Presenter: Alison
•HR support: Nancie

•Note taker: Gayle

d. Carers 
(30 approx)

6-8pm
•Presenter: Alison
•Facilitation: Nancie, Fran

•Note taker: Palen typist

Wed 4/8

Stonebridge & Projects

Address:
Twybridge Way
London NW10 0ST

a. Users (60 
approx)

10.45am-12.15pm
•Presenter: Alison
•Facilitation: Nancie, Beverly 
(tbd), Fran

•Scribes: Bola, Nisha, Owen
•Advocates: Rita, Sharon
•Interpreter/BSL signer: 
Niranjan Joshi /Zane

c. Staff 
(27 approx)

3.30-5pm
•Presenter: Alison
•HR support: Nancie

•Note taker: Anna McArthur

d. Managers 
(2 approx)

5-5.30pm
•Presenter: Alison
•HR support: Nancie

•Note taker: Anna McArthur

e. Carers 
(30-40 approx)

6-8pm
•Presenter: Alison
•Facilitation: Nancie, Fay, Fran

•Note taker: Palen typist
•Interpreter: Niranjan Joshi 

P
age 82



Overview (2/3)
Date Centre Group Time Resources

Thurs 5/8

CASS

Address: 
Willesden Centre for 
Health and Care
Robson Avenue Brent 
Park, London NW10 3RY

a. Users 
(5 approx)

10am-12pm
•Presenter: Alison
•Facilitation: Nancie/Fay/ran

•Assistants: key workers
•Speech and Language 
assistant: Jennie

b. Carers 
(5 max)

12-2pm
•Presenter: Alison
•Facilitation: Nancie, Fay, Fran

•Note taker: Palen typist
•Interpreter: Niranjan Joshi 

c. Staff 
(11 approx)

3.30-5pm
•Presenter: Alison
•HR support: Nancie

•Note taker: Gayle

d. Managers 
(2)

5-5.30pm
•Presenter: Alison
•HR support: Nancie

•Note taker: Gayle

Westbrook 

Address:

a. Staff 
(x approx)

3.30-5pm
•Presenter: Alison
•HR support: Nancie

•Note taker: Bhisma Thapa 

b. Managers •Presenter: Alison

25

Fri 6/8
Address:
51. LONGSTONE 
AVENUE. HARLESDEN. 
NW10 3UN

b. Managers 
(2 approx)

5-5.30pm
•Presenter: Alison
•HR support: Nancie

•Note taker: Nancie

c. Carers 
(60 approx)

6-8pm
•Presenter: Senel
•Facilitators and scribes: Senel, 
Fay, Nancie

•Note taker: Palen typist

Tues 
10/8

Kingsbury

Address: 
364B, Stag Lane London 
NW9 9AE

a. Users (30 
approx)

10.45am-12pm

•Presenter: Alison (30 min 
only)
•Facilitators and scribes: Clive, 
Fay. Nancie

•Advocates: Advocacy Partners 
(tbd)
•Interpreter: Niranjan Joshi 

c. Staff 
(9 approx)

3.30-5pm
•Presenter: Alison
•HR support: Nancie

Note taker: Pat Stewart

d. Managers 
(2 approx)

5-5.30pm
•Presenter: Alison
•HR support: Nancie

Note taker: Pat Stewart

e. Carers 
(30 approx)

6-8pm
•Presenter: Alison
•Facilitators and scribes: Clive, 
Fay, Nancie

•Note taker: Palen typist

P
age 83



Overview (3/3)

Date Centre Group Time Resources

Wed 11/8

New Millennium

Address: 
1 Robson Avenue, 
Willesden, London. NW10 
3SG

a. Users 
(35 approx)

10.45am-12pm
•Presenter: Alison
•Facilitators: Clive, Nancie, Fay

•Advocate: Jimmy Talisford
•Scribe: Bola, Gayle
•Interpreters/BSL signer: 
Niranjan Joshi /Portuguese 
interpreter /Zane/Rob

b. Staff 
(16 approx)

3.30-5pm
•Presenter: Alison
•HR support: Nancie

Note taker: Pat Emanuel

c. Managers 
(2)

5-5.30pm
•Presenter: Alison
•HR support: Nancie

Note taker: Pat Emanuel 

d. Carers 
(10/20 approx)

6-8pm
•Presenter: Clive
•Facilitators and scribes: Clive, 
Fay, Nancie

Palen typist

26

P
age 84



EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESMENT 
 

1 
 

APPENDIX D 

EQUALITIES IMPACT 
ASSESMENT 

DRAFT DAY OPPORTUNITIES STRATEGY LEARNING 
DISABILITIES 

 

NANCIE ALLEYNE 

5/11/2010 

 
 

Page 85



EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESMENT 

2 

 

Title of service being assessed 

Learning Disability Directly Provided Day Services 

Department and Section  

Housing and Community Care Adult Social Care 

Impact Needs/Requirement Assessments 

 

Completion Form 
Please note that you must complete this form if you are undertaking a formal Impact 
Needs/Requirement Assessment. You may also wish to use this form for guidance to 
undertake an initial assessment or screening. Use this form for new and existing 
policies. Where a question is not applicable to your assessment, please indicate 

 
1. What is the name of the service/policy/procedure/project etc to be assessed? 

This document details the Equality Impact Assessment for proposed changes to 
learning disability day services directly provided by the Housing and Community 
Care Department of London Borough of Brent for people with learning disabilities.  
The aim of this report is to outline how the proposed changes will impact on day 
service users taking into account their race, gender, religion/belief, sexual 
orientation, age and level of disabilities.   The proposed changes cover 6 directly 
provided day services: 

 Strathcona  Based in Wembley 
 Albert Road Based in South Kilburn 
 Stonebridge Based in Stonebridge  
 ASPPECT  Based on the grounds of Strathcona 
 Projects  Based on the site of Stonebridge Day Centre 
 CASS  Based at Willesden Centre for Health and Care 

2. Briefly describe the aim of the service/policy etc? What needs or duties is it 
designed to meet? How does it differ from an existing services/policies etc in this 
area? 
The proposed changes to directly provided learning disability day services are 
focused on moving from inflexible buildings-based services to personalised 
community-based solutions, which reflect individual service user’s aspirations.     

This proposed change has been developed on the basis of:  

Page 86



EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESMENT 

3 

 national policy - 2007 - Putting People First, a shared vision to transforming 
adult social care; 2009 - ‘Valuing People Now 2009’ 

 recent local experience (over the last two years the council has been 
working on plans to modernise the way they provide day care services to 
people who attend in-house day centres), and 

 Brent Council Adult Social Care’s belief that people who have a social care 
need have the right to lead their lives like everybody else, with the same 
opportunities and responsibilities, and to be treated with the same dignity 
and respect.   

 
The draft Day Opportunities Strategy brings these different elements together.  The 
strategy is not focused on eligible needs and services, but on people and outcomes 
such as:  

 Having the opportunity to engage in meaningful activities 
 Improving and extending social networks 
 Spending time in an integrated or mainstream setting 
 Learning, and earning money. 

Therefore, it is structured around the activities that underpin such outcomes:   

 To enjoy leisure and social activities (leisure); 
 To learn (education); and 
 To work (employment). 

Person centred planning is fundamental to this approach as reassessments and 
support planning to help individual to identify the outcomes they want to achieve 
and how they will achieve them is central to the implementation of the plan.   
 
Both the draft Day Opportunities Strategy and the plan for learning disability directly 
provided services will be reported to the council Executive on 13 December 2010 
for a decision.  
 
 

3. Are the aims consistent with the council’s Comprehensive Equality Policy? 
Central to the work of the Community Team for People with Learning Disabilities 
(CTPLD) and the Direct Services staff, is the concept of dignity, respect, equality 
and fairness and the backbone of this work is the right to independence, choice and 
control for people with learning disabilities. 

 
These concepts and the aims of the draft Day Opportunities Strategy fulfil the 
Council’s Action Plan for disability and Race Equality.  The promotion of greater 
personal choice and independence, employment and well-being is in line with the 

Page 87



EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESMENT 

4 

Council’s policy. 
 

4. Is there any evidence to suggest that this could affect some groups of people? Is 
there an adverse impact around race/gender/disability/faith/sexual/ 
orientation/age/health etc? What  are the reasons for this adverse impact? 
There is no evidence to suggest that there will be an adverse impact in terms of 
race/gender/disability/faith/sexual orientation/age or health because the approach is 
focused on addressing people’s individual needs specifically.  National evidence 
suggests that this approach has the capacity to bring significant improvements to 
people’s quality of life by moving away from a limited selection of inflexible services 
to a diverse range of services and support that meet individual needs.   
 
However, there will be a range of barriers that will need to be specifically addressed 
in the transition through reassessment, support planning and strategic 
commissioning.  Below is a selection of the issues that were raised during the 
consultation: 

 Some users have said that they do not always feel safe in public areas e.g. 
using public transport and/or just walking the streets 

 At a recent consultation event one user in particular felt that a day centre was 
needed for people who where blind and partially sighted.  They felt more 
protected being in one place and in one building 

 Some users from Stonebridge Day Centre are concerned about a proposed 
move to Strathcona Day Centre and some people with complex needs and/or 
autism may be affected by the move to the John Billam Centre 

 
These issues need to be tackled at three levels: 

 Public sector partnerships - community Safety for people with learning 
disabilities is not just a Brent issue, it is a national issue. Work will need to 
continue through the Learning Disability Partnership and public 
sector/community forums to tackle the underlying issues, but this will take time 

 Social care commissioning -  identifying suitable community based solutions 
and working with those providers to ensure service users are supported and 
made to feel safer 

 Individual reassessment and support planning - different people will have 
different concerns that need to be addressed in different ways.  Person 
centred planning will ensure that individuals’ specific concerns are addressed 
and the right solution is found for that person.    

Another issue that was raised at the consultation is that some services in Brent do 
not currently meet some cultural needs and those that do are at full capacity.  Again 
the person centred planning approach in combination with improved 
commissioning, brokerage and market management which is beginning to be 

Page 88



EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESMENT 

5 

developed will help to find the right support for people who have specific cultural 
needs.  For example, a Health and Well-being area has been put onto the Brent 
website which has signposting information about organisations who can meet 
specific cultural needs.  
 
 

5. Please describe the evidence you have used to make your judgement. What 
existing data for example (qualitative or quantitative) have you used to form your 
judgement? Please supply us with the evidence you used to make your judgement 
separately (by race, gender and disability etc). 
The evidence we have used to inform our judgements are the consultation events 
and previous assessments.  The detail of the consultation is set out in the next 
section.     
 
Information from previous assessments suggests a range of issues need to be 
addressed: 

 From the assessments many service users have said that they want to try 
new things in the community.  Some want to leave the day centre 
completely whilst others would like to combine community and day centre 
activities 

 Some people from the Asian community would prefer a more cultural 
specific day centre environment. This in the main is because of their desire 
to practice their faith together with other people from their own community 

 Twelve male and 5 female service users who attend Projects have said that  
they either want to gain full time employment, expand their working hours or 
secure work experience.  Similar themes have been articulated at the 
consultation meetings held in August, September and October 2010.  
Service users who attend Projects tend to be users who are more able to 
work full or part time. 

Further information will be collated from the comprehensive reassessment process 
of all 295 service users which is fundamental to the implementation of any changes.  
The process is being set up to ensure that there are close links between: 
assessment, support planning and strategic commissioning.  In this way additional 
gaps or any adverse impacts can be addressed in a systematic way. 

6. Are there any unmet needs/requirements that can be identified that affect specific 
groups? (Please refer to provisions of Disability Discrimination Act  and the 
regulations on sexual orientation and faith if applicable) 
Evidence from previous assessments and the consultation events suggests a range of 
unmet needs/requirements:  

 some community provision is not geared up to support people with 

Page 89



EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESMENT 

6 

disabilities e g, they do not have appropriate changing rooms or wheel chair 
access 

 some people have difficulty in accessing college buildings and local colleges 
 there is also anecdotal evidence that suggest services do not respond 

appropriately to people with learning disabilities because of their limited 
experience of dealing with them, and  

 there are no specific or women only services which would benefit some 
women from the Asian community. 

 
Again, the reassessment and support planning process will identify more of these 
unmet needs and requirements, and the process has been designed to record and 
address these issues wherever possible.  If they cannot be resolved, then a 
buildings-based, directly provided service will still be available.   

 
 

7. Have you consulted externally as part of your assessment? Who have you 
consulted? What methods did you use? And what have you done with the results?  
How do you intend to use the information gathered as part of the consultation? 
There has been a comprehensive consultation process.  The draft Day 
Opportunities Strategy and the proposed changes to directly provided learning 
disability services have been explained through a series of consultations and 
focused workshops.  
Brent Council Community Care officers spent approximately 2 hours at each 
directly provided service with service users to hear their views on and concerns 
about the proposed changes to day centres and service re-design.  After a 
presentation of the proposed plans by the Assistant Director for Community Care, 
all service user groups split into smaller groups for a facilitated discussion on the 
proposed strategy and what impact it would have on individuals and service users 
groups.  The facilitators asked service users to express their views to three 
questions:  

1. What do you think the Assistant Director just told you? 
2. What do you think about these changes? 
3. What do you like about the day centre? 

 
A leaflet with the key messages of the strategy in Plain English and Easy read was 
available to all users, as well as a copy of the draft Day Opportunities Strategy. 
Service user responses and questions were captured by scribes on flipcharts. 
In addition to key workers, advocates were present to assist service users 
expressing their views at the Strathcona and Stonebridge day centres. Projects 
users were also consulted with key workers and advocates present Translators and 
British Sign Language (BSL) signers were also available when needed.  At the end 
of the session, facilitators fed back their group responses. 

Page 90



EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESMENT 
 

7 
 

 
The ASPPECTS and Albert Road service user sessions had a different format to 
adjust to the different levels of need and capacity.  The key workers explained the 
proposed plans to service users by showing objects and pictures. Together with a 
speech and language therapist they tried to elicit service users’ responses to two 
questions: 

 
1. What do you like about the day centre? 
2. What things do you not like about the centre?  
 

The responses from these sessions are not recorded separately as it was very 
difficult to get meaningful reactions from this group of service users. 
 
The above consultation commenced in August 2010 for all the day centres which 
fall under the Direct Services provision for users, carers and staff and was repeated 
in September and again in October with amendments made to the format taking 
users, carers and staff comments on board and to improve users and carers 
understanding of the messages within the proposed draft Day Opportunities 
Strategy.  
 
A consultation event for providers who support service users who have no direct 
contact with their relative was also held in November.  
 
All the consultation events, 42 in total, have been recorded using scribes from the 
Corporate Consultation Team; Palentypist (which provided a complete verbatim 
record of what had been discussed) and note takers.  
 
The above information has been collected and a report has been produced for each 
round of consultation held in August, September and October 2010. Copies of the 
reports have been provided to carers and staff and all reports have been placed on 
the council’s website  
 
The information from the consultation meetings will be used to inform a report 
which will be presented to the Council’s Executive Committee on 13th December 
2010.  Within the report a number of options will be put forward for implementing 
the draft Day Opportunities Strategy. The final decision on the future shape of the 
Day Services will be for the members of the Executive committee to make at the 
meeting on 13th December 2010. 

 
 
8. Have you published the results of that consultation, if so, where?  

Copies of all consultation documents have been provided to carers as hard copies. 

Page 91



EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESMENT 

8 

Soft copies were made available on the Council’s website.  In addition at each 
consultation event, key concerns and issues from the previous meeting and what 
other people have been saying were fed back.   
 
Information has also been included in the Corporate Consultation Tracker. 
 
A report to the Executive will be presented in December 2010 which will include 
detail and information from all the consultation events. The Executive report, and its 
appendices, will be made available on Brent’s Website and hard copies will be 
available from the Council’s Committee Services. 

9. Is there public concern (in media etc) that this function or policy is being operated 
in a discriminatory manner? 
Significant concerns have been raised about proposed changes to directly provided 
services, but these concerns are not related to the changes being discriminatory, 
and they have been set out and addressed in the Executive report.  The national 
policy, local strategy and person centred planning which underpin these proposed 
changes should all ensure that support and services meet people’s individual needs 
in the future.   
 

10. If in your judgement, the proposed service/policy etc does have an adverse impact 
can that impact be justified.  You need to think about whether the proposed 
service/policy etc will have a positive or negative effect on the promotion of 
equality of opportunity.  If it will help eliminate discrimination in any way, or 
encourage or hinder community relations. 
The proposed changes will not have an adverse impact on equalities.   
 

11. If the Impact cannot be justified, how do you intend to deal with it? 

N/A 

12. What can be done to improve access to take up of services? 
Access to day services funding (as with all social care services) will be on the basis 
of service users meeting Fair Access to Service Criteria.   
 
Increasing access to community based services will require strategic 
commissioning work with community based providers, for example:  

 colleges will need to adapt their curriculums and offer improved access to 
their courses with the aim of users being able to study something that gives 
them a better chance of securing employment and becoming more 
independent in a mainstream classroom setting  

Page 92



EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESMENT 

9 

 specialist service providers and community providers ensuring their services 
are more culturally appropriate.  

 
Increasing access to services will also rely on flexible payment mechanisms, for 
example, a Direct Payment, a council managed fund or an Individual Service Fund.  
These options, and easy access to them, are being developed through a separate, 
but aligned project – Adult Social Care Customer Journey. 

13. What is the justification for taking these measures? 
The justification for this is to support inclusion, choice and independence and to 
enable people with learning disabilities to exercise their right to be full citizens.  

14. Please provide us with separate evidence of how you intend to monitor in the 
future. Please give the name of the person who will be for this on the front page 

The reassessment and support planning process will set a clear baseline against 
key indicators:  

 Age 
 Gender  
 Language, 
 Faith  
 Monitor direct payments and take up of personalised budget by the above 

group 
 % of users securing employment and type of employment 
 % of users accessing culturally specific services though brokerage and 

market stimulation 
 % of increase in women only service 
 Improvement to quality of users lives 
 Regular Reports to go to Learning Disabilities Partnership Board will be 

produced as well as to the disabilities forum  

The Joint Commissioner for Learning Disabilities Service will then be responsible 
for ensuring that where possible services and support is identified and developed to 
meet unmet needs.  

15. What are your recommendation based on the conclusion and comments of this 
assessment? 
 
The recommendation is to support options 4 in the Executive report.  The focus on 
reassessment, support planning aligned to strategic commissioning capacity means that 

Page 93



EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESMENT 

10 

the opportunities for choice and control, and personalised support will increase therefore 
ensuring day services as a whole supports the equalities agenda.   

 
Should you: 

a. Take and immediate action? 
 
Any actions that will be taken will be in line with the results from the consultation and 
Executive Decision in December 2010. 
 
b. Develop equality objectives and targets based on the conclusions. 

Reporting targets on equalities objectives are already in operation.  However, this work 
needs to be extended to include targets around faith, transgender, sexual orientation and 
ethnic take up of services through the baseline.  The information then needs to be used for 
effective future planning of the service. 
 
c. Carry out further research 
 
The reassessment and support planning process will identify the key actions which will 
then be updated through the ongoing monitoring. 

16. If equality objectives and targets need to be develop, please list them here 
In addition to the indicators that already exist:  

 A key element of the draft Day Opportunities Strategy and the draft plan for directly 
provided learning disability services is to increase employment for people with 
learning disabilities.  Only 3% of the people with learning disabilities are in 
employment. This will be measured by increased employment numbers and by type 
of work secured , by gender and age. 

 
 

17. What will your resource allocation of action comprise of: 
 The main funding for delivering this proposed change will be the money service 

users will be allocated as a Personal Budget through the reassessment and support 
planning process 

 The staff resource costs which will go into supporting service users to use this 
money effectively to ensure that the individual’s needs and outcomes are met  

 The strategic commissioning staff resource which will be focused on supporting the 
development of new services  

 Additional financial and people support will be provided by the Council’s OneCouncil 
PMO office. 

Page 94



1 
 

 
Executive 

13 December 2010 

Report from the Director of  
Finance and Corporate Services 

For Action  Wards Affected: 
All 

Increases in fees and charges in 2011 
 
 

1.0 Summary 

1.1 This report sets out proposed increases in fees and charges for council 
services from 1st January 2011 and for on and off street parking charges from 
1st February 2011.  The increases are one of the measures the council needs 
to take to address the projected budget gap of £37m in 2011/12 resulting from  
reductions in government grant and pressures on the council’s budget.  
Currently many fees and charges for council services in Brent are below fees 
and charges by other London councils and the increases proposed in this 
report will bring charges in Brent more into line with other councils.   

2.0 Recommendation 

 The Executive is asked to: 

2.1 agree the proposed increases in fees and charges in Appendix A to this report 
to apply from 1st January 2011 (paragraph 5.2); 

2.2 agree the proposed increases from 1st January 2011 in charges for 
advertising, design and the language service (paragraph 5.3);  

2.3 agree that in the event that any of the proposed increases in paragraphs 2.1 
or 2.2 above are in excess of the permitted maximum, the increases will be 
set at the maximum level allowed; 

2.4 agree the increase in on- and off-street parking charges set out in paragraphs 
5.8 and 5.9 of this report and the issue of the necessary notices to allow the 
increases to apply from 1st February 2011 or as soon as possible thereafter; 

2.5 agree that the first hour of off-street parking is frozen at its current level and 
that officers report back to the next meeting of the Executive on the most 
effective way of implementing a free first hour parking (paragraph 5.7); 

2.6 note that, for those fees and charges that are inclusive of VAT, the increase 
will include the increase in VAT from 17.5% to 20% from 1st January 2011; 

2.7 note that officers will be reviewing charges in other areas listed in paragraph 
5.10 of this report and will report back to the Executive on these issues. 

 

Agenda Item 4b

Page 95



2 
 

3.0 Background 

3.1 The financial forecast in the First Reading Debate report to Full Council 
identified the combined impact of phased reductions in government grant and 
pressures on council spending over the next four years.  It identified an 
estimated budget gap of £37m in 2011/12.    

3.2 The council’s One Council Programme includes a range of measures to 
address these reductions.   In 2009/10, in preparation for expected reductions 
in funding, 50 manager posts were deleted.  A further 250 posts have been 
deleted across the organisation in the current year as a result of modernising 
the finance function, streamlining the processing of housing and council tax 
benefits, and carrying out a general structure and staffing review.  Further 
measures to save costs and improve efficiency are planned for future years, 
including a change to the council’s management model, reviewing the way 
support services are provided, removing duplication and improving efficiency 
in the way the council deals with first contacts from customers, negotiating 
reductions in the cost of goods and services purchased by the council, and 
rationalising the council’s property holdings.  The council is also looking at the 
way it provides services to ensure that they are effective including 
rationalising libraries, changing the way the waste management service is 
provided, and introducing new arrangements to meet service needs of people 
with learning disabilities.   All these changes are expected to lead to the loss 
of significantly more posts than the 300 already deleted together with 
significant reductions in non-staffing costs. 

3.3 But these changes alone will not deliver the savings necessary to compensate 
for loss of grant.   So the council, along with all other councils, is having to 
review the charges it makes for services.    

3.4 The proposals in this report are for charges to be increased from 1st January 
2011 wherever possible.   This both helps address the impact of loss of grant 
in the 2010/11 financial year and means that the increases happen at the 
same time as increases in VAT from 17.5% to 20% rather than there being 
two separate increases.   

3.5 The report only covers some of the areas of fees and charges raised by the 
council.  Other areas are subject to review and these are detailed in 
paragraph 5.10.   Any decisions to increase charges in these areas or 
introduce new charges will be subject to decisions by the Executive.  All other 
charges subject to VAT which are not covered in this report will increase from 
1 January 2011 as a result of the increase in VAT. 

4.0 The review of fees and charges 

4.1 The review has taken into account the following issues: 

a. For many services, the council provides services free at the point of use: 
waste collection and disposal; street cleaning, lighting and maintenance; 
library services; parks; cultural festivals; children’s centres; youth service 
provision; school admissions; support for children with Special Education 
Needs; child protection; children in care; support for homeless people; 
social housing applications; housing adaptations; mental health services 
(section 117 clients); social care assessment services; residential and 
home care for people who cannot afford to pay; community safety 

Page 96



3 
 

including for example CCTV, noise nuisance patrols, and anti-graffiti 
teams; consumer protection and environmental health services; 

b. For other services, the council charges for the service but subsidises them 
because of the wider benefits they bring.   For example, the council 
subsidises use of  leisure facilities in order to promote sport which has 
wider benefits for communities in Brent; 

c. For some services, the government either sets the charges or determines 
the framework within which the charges are made.  These include for 
example planning applications, charges for residential and home care for 
adults, registration of births, deaths and marriages, parking penalties, and 
fees charged to grant licenses to businesses that require them.  The 
council either has no discretion on the level of charges set or  must set 
them within tightly defined statutory guidelines; 

d. In other cases the council has freedom to set charges at a level that meets 
the costs it incurs.  This includes for example charges for building control 
services, pest control, a wide range of street licences, checking nationality 
applications and a wide range of other charges; 

e. There are certain charges where there is no fixed basis for determining the 
charges – for example, a full commercial rate may not be determinable or 
the council may be a monopoly supplier of services.  In these cases the 
council sets what it considers a fair charge.  For example, this applies to 
nationality checking; 

f. Specific rules apply to parking charges where the council can set charges 
at the level that it wishes so long as the income generated is spent on 
parking or a specified set of transport related services; 

g. There are certain services for which the council can charge commercial 
rates.  These include, for example, hire of the Paul Daisley Hall, use of 
parks for special events and so on. 

4.2 The review has also looked at what neighbouring councils charge.  In general, 
Brent Council charges less for its services than other councils in London.   
The proportion of the council’s total costs met by charges is 8th lowest out of 
33 London Boroughs; the amount charged per head is 12th lowest out 33 
London Boroughs.  In several areas, the council charges below what many of 
its neighbouring boroughs charge; for example, Brent’s parking charges are 
generally lower than neighbouring boroughs.  The review has also looked at 
areas where other boroughs charge and Brent Council does not; for example, 
other councils charge for call outs to deal with rat infestation but Brent does 
not.   In the current financial climate, it is very difficult to justify this which also 
leads to inefficient use of resources as a result of false call-outs.   Part of the 
review has been to look at what other boroughs are planning to do to their 
existing charges in response to the reduction in grant; there is evidence that 
most boroughs are planning to increase fees and charges in response to the 
reductions. 

4.3 The review has also looked at the consequences of increases in charges, 
including carrying out Equality Impact Assessments.   In certain instances 
there is significantly more demand for services than the council can meet.  For 
example, there are long waiting lists for allotments which other boroughs 
charge for at a higher rate than Brent.   Given the  decisions that the council is 

Page 97



4 
 

having to take in response to cuts in funding, it is difficult to justify continuing 
to charge low rates when there is such a high demand.   The review has also 
looked at circumstances in which charges are likely to be affected by reduced 
demand for the service and therefore there would be no or little financial 
benefit to the council from increasing the charges. 

5.0 Proposed increases 

5.1 The general approach that has been taken to determining increases is as 
follows: 

a. increases to bring charges up to the level charged in other boroughs 
where there is evidence that Brent is charging less than others – this 
applies to parking charges; charges for allotments (including review of 
concessions); and licence fees for scaffolding and skips; 

b. increases to ensure full cost recovery – this applies to licensing and street 
trading charges; 

c. an increase of 10% in all other cases except where it is clear that 
increases will affect demand for the service or there are policy reasons for 
not increasing the charges – for example, usage of sports pitches is likely 
to be affected by increases so for those that will be affected a 5% increase 
has been applied, rather than 10%, and in the case of cemeteries a policy 
decision has been taken not to increase the charge for child graves; 

d. introduction of new charges where it supports efficient use of council 
resources – this applies to the proposal to charge for call outs for rat 
infestations. 

Fees and charges (other than parking) 

5.2 Appendix A provides details of proposed increases in fees and charges from 
1st January 2011.  The areas covered are as follows: 

a. licensing fees; 

b. library charges for overdue books and reservations; 

c. charges for nationality checking, weddings and individual citizenship 
ceremonies (including introduction of a £6 charge, on top of the £9 
statutory fee, for supply of certified copies of births, deaths, and marriage 
certificates within 20 minutes of a request being made); 

d. Fixed Penalty Notices for littering; 

e. skip, scaffolding and hoarding licenses; 

f. sports pitches and commercial use of parks; 

g. pest control, including introduction for a charge for call out for rat 
infestation; 

h. cemeteries; 

i. allotments; 

j. hire of youth facilities and registration for Duke of Edinburgh awards. 

5.3 In addition, it is proposed that there is an increase of 10% in charges by the 
Communications Unit for advertising, design and translations.  

Page 98



5 
 

Parking charges 

5.4 Brent’s on and off street parking charges were last revised on 1 April 2009.  
The review at that time recognised that Brent charged significantly less than 
many neighbouring boroughs and aimed to bring Brent’s charges closer to 
those of neighbouring boroughs.    The review also recognised the policy 
benefits of increased parking charges including reduced congestion and the 
contribution made to reducing carbon emissions. 

5.5 A wide public consultation over the council’s strategic approach to parking in 
2007 which preceded those changes highlighted the need for consistency and 
uniformity in the charges including greater alignment of on and of street 
charging.  Members at the time agreed that on street charges should continue 
to be set in a manner which encourages short term use as this increases the 
number of motorists able to access each location.   

5.6 The present review of fees and charges has identified that Brent’s charges 
remain significantly below those of neighbouring boroughs and that Brent’s 
income per on-street parking place is extremely low relative to comparable 
boroughs.  The review concluded that an increase of approximately 50% 
would be appropriate to bring charges closer to parity with neighbours. 

5.7 Access to and availability of parking can make an important contribution to the 
economic well being of the borough’s retail centres and this was reflected in 
the commitment made by the present administration to ensure that the first 
hour of parking in the council’s car parks should be free.  This is consistent 
with the goal discussed above of encouraging short term use of on-street 
parking places.  Officers are currently investigating the most effective way of 
implementing this change and will report back to the next meeting of the 
Executive on arrangements to be put in place.   In the meantime it is proposed 
to freeze the charge for the first hour. 

5.8 Table 1 below shows the current and proposed charges for off street parking 
in Brent’s car parks.   The proposals are for charge increases to be 
implemented from 1st February 2011.  However, this depends on the speed at 
which necessary Traffic Orders can be implemented and changes made to 
the parking machines.   This may lead to delay and Members are therefore 
asked to agreed the increases from 1st February 2011 or as soon as possible 
thereafter.    

Table 1 – Proposed revised off-street parking charges 
Length of Stay Existing Charge 

(1 April 2009) 
Proposed charge 
from 1 February 

2011 
Up to 1 hour £1.00 £1.00 
Up to 2 hours £2.00 £3.00 
Up to 3 hours £3.00 £4.50 
3 hours or more (including all 
day / until car park closes / 
midnight) 

£5.00 £7.50 

5.9 Table 2 below shows the current and proposed charges for on-street parking 
at pay and display meters.  

 

 

Page 99



6 
 

Table 2 – Proposed revised on-street parking charges 
Length of Stay Existing Charge  

(1 April 2009) 
Proposed charge 
from 1 February 

2011  
Up to 20 minutes 40p 60p 
Up to 40 minutes £1.00 £1.50 
 Up to 1 hour £1.80 £2.40 
Up to 2 hours £4.00 £6.00 
Up to 4 hours (max) £6.00 £9.00 

 Further areas for review 

5.10 The following areas are subject to further review (proposals for changes to 
charges as a result of these reviews will require agreement of the Executive): 

a. Adult Social Care charges will be reviewed as part of the existing One 
Council projects on the provision of Direct Services and the Customer 
Journey; 

b. There will be a review of fees for sports facilities, including Willesden and 
Vale Farm Sport Centres; 

c. Anomalies for charging for on-street parking spaces on Bridge Rd, 
Wembley, on Preston Rd and on the Park Royal Industrial Estate will be 
reviewed; 

d. Library charges are subject to a more general review as part of the overall 
libraries transformation project;  

e. Charges for the School Improvement Service will be reviewed as part of 
an overall review of the School Improvement Service offer; 

f. There will be a review of other services to schools to ensure the charges 
meet the full cost of the services; 

g. Charges for Brent Adult and Community Education Services and the 
Schools Music Service will be reviewed in advance of the 2011-12 
academic year; 

h. Charges for private sector housing services provided by Housing and 
Community Care will be reviewed in advance of the 2011/12 financial year. 

6.0 Financial Implications 

6.1 The impact of reductions in grant on the council finances were set out in the 
report for the First Reading Debate on the 2011/12 Budget to Full Council on 
22nd November 2010.  Increases in fees and charges have been identified as 
one of the measures for bridging the budget gap and a target for a minimum 
£250k saving in 2010/11 and £4m from 2011/12 has been set within the One 
Council Programme. 

6.2 Details of the impact of these changes and changes to charges agreed at 
previous meetings of the Executive are shown in Table 3 below. 

  

 

 

  

Page 100



7 
 

 Table 3 Impact of proposed changes on income to the council 
 2010/11 impact 

£’000 
2011/12 impact 

£’000 
Increases proposed in 
paragraph 5.2/Appendix A 

104 415 

Increases proposed in 
paragraph 5.3 

20 80 

Increases in off-street parking 
charges – excluding effect of 1 
hour free parking  (paragraph 
5.8) 

0-12 0-70 

Increases in on-street parking 
charges (paragraph 5.9) 

100-166 600-1,000 

Additional income from 
proposals in this report 

224-302 1,095-1,565 

Add:   
Change to parking permits 
arrangements agreed in August 
2010 

- 1,100 

Moving Traffic Contravention net 
income – agreed in June 2010 

50 275 

Less:   
Removal of  free bulky waste 
charge agreed in August 2010 

(196) (393) 

Net additional income from all 
decisions on fees and 
charges  

78-156 2,077-2,547 

6.3 At this stage it is not possible to assess the savings from the further reviews 
of fees and charges set out in paragraph 5.10.   However, significant areas of 
charge are covered by these reviews and it is considered likely that these 
reviews will enable the target of £4m additional income from fees and charges 
in 2011/12 to be achieved after taking account of the cost of introduction of a 
free hour parking in off-street car parks.   In addition, after taking account of 
the cost of reintroduction of free bulky waste being met within the 
Environment and Neighbourhood Services cash limit in 2010/11, the target 
saving of £250k in the current year is expected to be achieved. 

6.4 Income from the increases will be monitored as part of the council’s budget 
monitoring procedures.  In particular, although account has been taken of 
changes in demand for services resulting from the proposed changes to fees, 
the potential impact of this will need to be kept under review. 

7.0 Legal Implications 

7.1 Paragraph 3.1 (o) of Part 4 of the Constitution removes from the delegated 
authority of any officer a decision which relates to the setting, levying or 
increase of any fees or charges to any member of the public in respect of a 
Council service (other than room lettings and copying charges).  It is therefore 
necessary for members to agree most of these changes.  Members are also 
able to agree those which could be otherwise determined at officer level. 

7.2 Charges can only be imposed where there is a legal power to do so but such 
powers are contained in various Acts and regulations.  The Local Government 
Act 2003 introduced a new general power for local authorities to charge for 

Page 101



8 
 

discretionary services provided criteria in legislation are met and guidance is 
taken into account.  The necessary regulations and the associated guidance 
in relation to powers to charge have been in place since November 2003.  
Where these powers are relied upon the amount that may be charged is 
restricted to an amount which taking one year with another enables to council 
to recover its costs but does not mean a profit will be made. 

7.3 Legal Services will review proposed new charges to ensure that they are 
lawful and within the council’s powers.  

7.4 Any changes to the existing parking charges require notices to be publicised 
under section 46A of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984.  Introduction of 
charges at new sites require the making of Traffic Orders under Sections 45 
and 46 of the Act. The statutory processes are set out by the Secretary of 
State.  

8.0 Diversity Implications 

8.1 The proposals in this report have been subject to Equality Impact 
Assessments.    

8.2 The proposals will have an overall impact on users of service for which 
charges are made.  However, the changes to the charges are considered 
proportionate, reasonable and can be objectively justified in the context of the 
reduction in grant and budget pressures that the council faces which is set out 
in the report.   They are one of a number of measures the council is having to 
take to address the reduction in resources. 

8.3 The fees and charges covered in this report have been reviewed on an 
individual basis and in the context of the council’s policy on fees and charges.  
The increases are intended to apply, and will in practice be applied, fairly.   

8.4 The removal of the concession for allotments for people over 60 is considered 
fair in the context of the overall choices faced by the council.  However, the 
council will consider any individual cases of hardship caused by this proposal 
and take remedial action if required. 

8.5 The impact of the increases will be monitored to ensure fair application of the 
charges. 

9.0 Staffing Implications 

9.1 None specific 

10.0 Background Papers 

10.1 Report on the First Reading Debate on the 2011/12 Budget to Full Council on 
22nd November 2010. 

11.0 Contact Officers 
Peter Stachniewski, Tel: 020 8937 1813 
E-mail: peter.stachniewski@brent.gov.uk 
Clive Heaphy, Tel:  020 8937 1424   
E-mail: clive.heaphy@brent.gov.uk 
 

CLIVE HEAPHY 
Director of Finance and Corporate Services 

Page 102



Proposed fees and charges from 1 January 2011 Appendix A

Service provided
Charging 

policy
Existing Charge

Charge from January 
2011

Percentage 
change in 

fees
Notes

Licensing Fees - Various (excluding those 
that are statutory)

Cost Recovery Range of charges Range of charges 20% These increases reflect full economic costs, including overheads

Street Trading Charges Cost Recovery Range of charges Range of charges 20% These increases reflect full economic costs, including overheads
Stadium Safety Certification Cost Recovery Range of charges Range of charges 20% These increases reflect full economic costs, including overheads

HEALTH SAFETY AND LICENSING

P
age 103



Proposed fees and charges from 1 January 2011 Appendix A

Service provided
Charging 

policy
Existing Charge

Charge from January 
2011

Percentage 
change in 

fees
Notes

Overdue books: adults (per day) Fair Charging £0.18 £0.20 10% Demand constant - standard 10% applied
Overdue books: Concessions (per day) Fair Charging £0.09 £0.10 10% Demand constant - standard 10% applied
Overdue books: under 12s Fair Charging No charge No charge 0% Demand constant - standard 10% applied
Reservations in stock: Adults Fair Charging £1.00 £1.10 10% Demand constant - standard 10% applied

Reservations in stock: Concessions Fair Charging £0.50 £0.55 10% Demand constant - standard 10% applied

Reservations in stock: Under 18s Fair Charging No charge No charge 10% Demand constant - standard 10% applied

Reservations not in stock Fair Charging £1.50 £1.65 10% Demand constant - standard 10% applied
All other library charges Fair Charging Schedule Schedule 10% Demand constant - standard 10% applied

LIBRARIES

P
age 104



Proposed fees and charges from 1 January 2011 Appendix A

Service provided
Charging 

policy
Existing Charge

Charge from  January 
2011

Percentage 
change in 

fees
Notes

Nationality Checking Mon - Sat            
Single Application - adult

Fair Charging £40 £45 13% Demand constant - increase in charge rounded up to nearest £5

Nationality Checking Mon - Sat            
Single Application - child

Fair Charging £20 £25 25% Demand constant - increase in charge rounded up to nearest £5

Nationality Checking Mon - Sat Sunday 
and Out of Hours

Fair Charging £5.00 in addition to above
£5.50 in addition to 

above
10% Demand constant - standard 10% applied

Approved Premises Weddings            
Town Hall Monday - Thursday 

Fair Charging £100 £110 10% Demand increasing - standard 10% applied

Approved Premises Weddings            
Town Hall Friday 

Fair Charging £120 £135 13% Demand increasing - increase in charge rounded up to nearest £5

Approved Premises Weddings            
Town Hall Saturday

Fair Charging £180 £200 11% Demand increasing - increase in charge rounded up to nearest £5

Approved Premises Weddings            
Town Hall - Sunday

Fair Charging £205 £235 15% Demand increasing - increase in charge rounded up to nearest £5

Approved Premises Weddings           
External Venues Monday - Friday

Fair Charging £250 £275 10% Demand increasing - standard 10% applied

Approved Premises Weddings         
External Venues Saturday

Fair Charging £300 £330 10% Demand increasing - standard 10% applied

Approved Premises Weddings         
External Venues - Sunday/Bank 
Holidays 

Fair Charging £350 £385 10% Demand increasing - standard 10% applied

Citizenship Individual Private Ceremony Fair Charging £95 £105 10% Demand increasing - standard 10% applied

Citizenship Private Ceremony-weekend Fair Charging £135 £150 11% Demand increasing - increase in charge rounded up to nearest £5

Settlement Checking Service  1 single 
adult Mon- Sat

Fair Charging £70 £80 14% Demand constant - increase in charge rounded up to nearest £5

Settlement  Checking Service per child 
Mon - Sat

Fair Charging £20 £25 25% Demand constant - increase in charge rounded up to nearest £5

Charge for certified copy of birth, death 
or marriage certificate on demand 

Fair Charging N/A £6 N/A
New charge for production of a certified copy of birth, death or marriage 
certificate on demand (within 20 minutes); on top of the statutory fee of 
£9. 

REGISTRAR'S AND NATIONALITY SERVICE

P
age 105



Proposed fees and charges for 2010/11 Appendix A

Service provided
Charging 

policy
Existing Charge

Charge from January 
2011

Percentage 
change in 

fees
Notes

Fixed Penalty Notice (FPN) - Depositing 
Litter

Statutory £75 £80 7% Charges at maximum permitted under the relevent legislation

FPN - Failure to comply with street litter 
control notice

Statutory £100 £110 10% Charges at maximum permitted under the relevent legislation

FPN - Failure to comply - litter clearing 
notice

Statutory £100 £110 10% Charges at maximum permitted under the relevent legislation

FPN - Failure to produce waste documents Statutory £300 £300 0% Charges at maximum permitted under the relevent legislation

FPN - Failure to produce authority to 
transport waste

Statutory £300 £300 0% Charges at maximum permitted under the relevent legislation

FPN - Unauthorised distribution of free 
printed matter

Statutory £75 £80 7% Charges at maximum permitted under the relevent legislation

FPN - Failure to comply with a waste 
receptacles notice

Statutory £100 £110 10% Charges at maximum permitted under the relevent legislation

FPN - Fly Posting - illegal display of 
advertisements - Graffiti

Statutory £75 £80 7% Charges at maximum permitted under the relevent legislation

FPN - Fouling by dogs of land specified in 
LBB Order 2007

Statutory £75 £80 7% Charges at maximum permitted under the relevent legislation

FPN - Working on vehicles on the public 
highway

Statutory £100 £110 10% Charges at maximum permitted under the relevent legislation

STREET FINES

P
age 106



Proposed fees and charges from 1 January 2011 Appendix A

Service provided Charging policy Existing Charge
Charge from January 

2011

Percentage 
change in 

fees
Notes

Scaffold Licence Fee Full Commercial £36 £75 108%
Doubling of charges to bring them into line with other boroughs - 
increase in charge rounded to nearest £5.  Assumed 10% reduction in 
use as a result of customer resistance.

Scaffold Deposits Full Commercial £16 £35 119%
Doubling of charges to bring them into line with other boroughs - 
increase in charge rounded to nearest £5.  Assumed 10% reduction in 
use as a result of customer resistance.

Hoarding Licence Fee Full Commercial £36 £75 108%
Doubling of charges to bring them into line with other boroughs - 
increase in charge rounded to nearest £5.  Assumed 10% reduction in 
use as a result of customer resistance.

Hoarding Deposit Full Commercial £16 £35 119%
Doubling of charges to bring them into line with other boroughs - 
increase in charge rounded to nearest £5.  Assumed 10% reduction in 
use as a result of customer resistance.

Skip Licence Fee Full Commercial £19 £40 111%
Doubling of charges to bring them into line with other boroughs - 
increase in charge rounded to nearest £5.  Assumed 10% reduction in 
use as a result of customer resistance.

Skip Licence Deposit Full Commercial £250 £500 100%
Doubling of charges to bring them into line with other boroughs - 
increase in charge rounded to nearest £5.  Assumed 10% reduction in 
use as a result of customer resistance.

Unlicensed Skips Full Commercial £34 £70 106%
Doubling of charges to bring them into line with other boroughs - 
increase in charge rounded to nearest £5.  Assumed 10% reduction in 
use as a result of customer resistance.

Builders Materials Licence Fee Full Commercial £36 £75 108%
Doubling of charges to bring them into line with other boroughs - 
increase in charge rounded to nearest £5.  Assumed 10% reduction in 
use as a result of customer resistance.

Illegal Deposit Charge - Pick Up Full Commercial £37 £75 103%
Doubling of charges to bring them into line with other boroughs - 
increase in charge rounded to nearest £5.  Assumed 10% reduction in 
use as a result of customer resistance.

Illegal Deposit Charge - Transport Full Commercial £52 £105 102%
Doubling of charges to bring them into line with other boroughs - 
increase in charge rounded to nearest £5.  Assumed 10% reduction in 
use as a result of customer resistance.

Illegal Deposit Charge - Storage Full Commercial £16 £35 119%
Doubling of charges to bring them into line with other boroughs - 
increase in charge rounded to nearest £5.  Assumed 10% reduction in 
use as a result of customer resistance.

STREET FEES

P
age 107



Proposed fees and charges ffrom 1 January 2011 Appendix A

Service provided
Charging 

policy
Existing Charge

Charge from January 
2011

Percentage 
change in 

fees
Notes

Pest treatment, Bedbugs Fair Charging £160 £195 22%
Demand falling.  Current charge includes supplement of £10 per 
bed/sofa.  The increase to £195 allows a simplified flat rate fee as a 
percursor for on-line booking.

Pest treatment, Beetles, silverfish, garden 
ants

Fair Charging £85 £95 12% Demand constant - standard increase applied rounded up to nearest £5

Pest treatment, Cockroaches Fair Charging £95 £95 0%
Demand falling - fee aligned with fees for other treatments to limit 
number of charge bands in advance of on-line booking

Pest treatment, Fleas Fair Charging £85 £95 12% Demand falling - standard increase applied rounded up to nearest £5

Pest treatment, Mice Fair Charging £85 £95 12% Demand constant - standard increase applied rounded up to nearest £5

Pest treatment, Moths Fair Charging £145 £195 34%
Demand constant - 34% applied to take charge to highest price band to 
reflect dramatic increase in cost of insecticide for the pest

Pest treatment, Pharoah Ants Fair Charging £145 £160 10% Demand constant - standard 10% applied

Pest treatment, Rats Fair Charging £0 £95 N/A

New charge applied in line with charge for mice - absence of charge 
leads to inefficient use of resources.  Forecast 75-90% fall in demand 
based on year 1 experience of other London authorities who have 
introduced charges

Pest treatment, Squirrels Fair Charging £145 £160 10% Demand falling - standard 10% applied
Pest treatment, Wasps Fair Charging £50 £55 10% Demand constant - standard 10% applied
Pest treatment - appointment missed Fair Charging £10 £25 150% Step change increase to ensure better and fairer use of resources

PEST CONTROL

All charges shown are the amount  customers pay at the time of booking by debit or credit card. Customers that prefer to pay by cash or at the time of booking are charged £25 more  to reflect the  
higher costs of cash handling and the greater likelihood of cancellation for these transactions

P
age 108



Proposed fees and charges from 1 Januray 2011 Appendix A

Service provided
Charging 

policy
Existing Charge

Charge from January 
2011

Percentage 
change in 

fees
Notes

Soccer [13] Subsidised £722 £760 5% Lower increase because of fall off in demand
Soccer [17] Subsidised £947 £995 5% Lower increase because of fall off in demand
Soccer Single Subsidised £61 £65 7% Lower increase because of fall off in demand - rounded up to nearest 

£5Soccer junior Subsidised £391 £430 10% Demand constant - standard 10% applied
Soccer junior single Subsidised £33 £40 21% Demand constant - standard increase applied rounded up to nearest £5
Rugby Subsidised £715 £790 10% Demand constant - standard 10% applied
Rugby Single Subsidised £61 £70 15% Demand constant - standard increase applied rounded up to nearest £5
Rugby junior Subsidised £391 £430 10% Demand constant - standard 10% applied
Rugby junior single Subsidised £33 £40 21% Demand constant - standard increase applied rounded up to nearest £5
Soccer/Rugby Training Fair Charging £38 £45 18% Demand constant - standard increase applied rounded up to nearest £5
Gaelic Subsidised £556 £615 11% Demand constant - standard increase applied rounded up to nearest £5
Gaelic single Subsidised £75 £85 13% Demand constant - standard increase applied rounded up to nearest £5
Gaelic junior Subsidised £302 £335 11% Demand constant - standard increase applied rounded up to nearest £5
Gaelic junior single Subsidised £39 £45 15% Demand constant - standard increase applied rounded up to nearest £5
Cricket [11] Subsidised £862 £905 5% Lower increase because of fall off in demand
Cricket single Subsidised £85 £90 6% Lower increase because of fall off in demand - rounded up to nearest 

£5Cricket Junior Subsidised £471 £520 10% Demand constant - standard 10% applied
Cricket junior single Subsidised £48 £55 15% Demand constant - standard increase applied rounded up to nearest £5
Bowls Subsidised £1,931 £2,125 10% Demand constant - standard 10% applied
Fun Fair Full Commercial £815 £900 10% Demand constant - standard 10% applied
Circus Full Commercial £315 £350 11% Demand constant - standard increase applied rounded up to nearest £5

PARKS

P
age 109



Proposed fees and charges from 1 January 2011 Appendix A

Service provided Charging policy Existing Charge
Charge from January 

2011

Percentage 
change in 

fees
Notes

Brent resident
Person 16yrs + Full Commercial £2,190 £2,410 10% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Child full plot Full Commercial £1,875 £1,875 0% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Child half plot Full Commercial £787 £787 0% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Pathway plot Full Commercial £3,034 £3,340 10% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Person 16yrs +[reopen] Full Commercial £519 £570 10% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Child full plot[reopen] Full Commercial £204 £204 0% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Child half plot[reopen] Full Commercial £156 £156 0% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Person 16yrs +[common] Full Commercial £740 £815 10% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Child full plot[common] Full Commercial £510 £510 0% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Child half plot[common] Full Commercial £255 £255 0% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Cremated remains f/plot Full Commercial £795 £875 10% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Cremated existing Full Commercial £164 £180 10% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Vault [Classic] Full Commercial £4,800 £5,280 10% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Vault[Premier] Full Commercial £6,800 £7,480 10% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Cremated remains new vault Full Commercial £400 £440 10% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Cremated remains existing vault Full Commercial £100 £110 10% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Brent non-resident
Person 16yrs + Full Commercial £3,284 £3,615 10% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Child full plot Full Commercial £2,812 £2,812 0% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Child half plot Full Commercial £1,180 £1,180 0% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Pathway plot Full Commercial £4,550 £5,005 10% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Person 16yrs +[reopen] Full Commercial £778 £855 10% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Child full plot[reopen] Full Commercial £306 £306 0% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Child half plot[reopen] Full Commercial £234 £234 0% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Person 16yrs +[common] Full Commercial £1,110 £1,220 10% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Child full plot[common] Full Commercial £765 £765 0% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Child half plot[common] Full Commercial £383 £383 0% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Cremated remains f/plot Full Commercial £1,192 £1,315 10% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Cremated existing Full Commercial £246 £270 10% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Vault [Classic] Full Commercial £7,200 £7,920 10% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Vault[Premier] Full Commercial £10,200 £11,220 10% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Cremated remains new vault Full Commercial £600 £660 10% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Cremated remains existing vault Full Commercial £150 £165 10% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves

CEMETERIES

P
age 110



Proposed fees and charges from 1 January 2011 Appendix A

Service provided Charging policy Existing Charge
Charge from January 

2011

Percentage 
change in 

fees
Notes

Other
28'' wide grave Full Commercial £306 £340 11% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
30'' wide grave Full Commercial £408 £450 10% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Earth grave for 3 Full Commercial £418 £460 10% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Shroud & slats Full Commercial £86 £95 10% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Probate register Full Commercial £25 £30 20% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Transfer burial rights Full Commercial £52 £60 15% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Register search Full Commercial £20 £25 25% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Chapel hire Full Commercial £55 £65 18% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Memorial [full] Full Commercial £200 £220 10% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Headstone plaque Full Commercial £191 £210 10% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Inscriptions Full Commercial £66 £75 14% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Memorial removal Full Commercial £104 £115 11% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves
Memorial replacement Full Commercial £104 £115 11% 10% increase (rounded up to nearest £5) other than child graves

CEMETERIES

P
age 111



Proposed fees and charges from 1 January 2011 Appendix A

Service provided Charging policy Existing Charge
Charge from January 

2011

Percentage 
change in 

fees
Notes

Allotment type site 126m2 Subsidised £33 £75 127%

High demand for allotments - new charges are below highest in 
benchmark group.  100% concession currently applies to unemployed 
people, people registered disabled, and people in receipt of State 
Pension.  From 1 January 2011, 50% concession will replace 100% and 
will apply to the following groups - people in receipt of Income Support, 
Job Seekers' Allowance or Pension Credit and people registered 
disabled.

Allotment type site 253m2 Subsidised £66 £150 127%

High demand for allotments - new charges are below highest in 
benchmark group.  100% concession currently applies to unemployed 
people, people registered disabled, and people in receipt of State 
Pension.  From 1 January 2011, 50% concession will replace 100% and 
will apply to the following groups - people in receipt of Income Support, 
Job Seekers' Allowance or Pension Credit and people registered 
disabled.

ALLOTMENTS

P
age 112



Proposed fees and charges from 1January 2011 Appendix A

Service provided
Charging 

policy
Existing Charge

Charge from  January 
2011

Percentage 
change in 

fees
Notes

Roundwood gymnasium, hall and 
classroom hire

Subsidised  Various  Various 10%
Demand increasing - standard 10% applied - will only apply to new 
bookings

Poplar Grove - Cecil James Hall, David 
Noel Gym and Building Space

Subsidised  Various  Various 10%
Demand increasing - standard 10% applied - will only apply to new 
bookings

Granville Hall Hire Subsidised  Various  Various 10%
Demand constant - standard 10% applied - will only apply to new 
bookings

Duke of Edinburgh (DoE) Bronze 
Expedition Section

Subsidised £147 £165 13%
Demand constant - standard 10% applied rounded up to nearest £5 - 
most new applications will be June/July 2011

DoE Silver Expedition Section Direct Subsidised £286 £315 10%
Demand constant - standard 10% applied - most new applications will be 
June/July 2011

DoE Silver Expedition Section Ex 
Bronze

Subsidised £224 £250 12%
Demand constant - standard 10% applied rounded up to nearest £5 - 
most new applications will be June/July 2011

DoE Gold Expedition Section Subsidised £365 £405 11%
Demand constant - standard 10% applied rounded up to nearest £5 - 
most new applications will be June/July 2011

DoE Bronze Registration Schools Cost Recovery £18 £20 14%
Demand constant - standard 10% applied rounded up to nearest £5 - 
most new applications will be June/July 2011

DoE Silver Registration Schools Cost Recovery £23 £25 10%
Demand constant - standard 10% applied - most new applications will be 
June/July 2011

Hire of E2G bus (Out reach Team) Cost Recovery £180 £200 11%
Demand falling - standard 10% applied rounded up to nearest £5 - will 
only apply to new bookings

YOUTH FACILITIES

P
age 113



P
age 114

T
his page is intentionally left blank



London Borough of Brent 
Summary of Decisions taken by the Executive  

on Monday, 13 December 2010 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillor John (Chair), Councillor Butt (Vice-Chair) and Councillors Arnold, 
Beswick, Crane, Jones, J Moher, R Moher, Powney and Thomas 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillors Adeyeye, Mrs Bacchus, Beckman, Cheese, S Choudhary, 
Gladbaum, Harrison, Lorber, McLennan and HB Patel 

 
 

Agenda 
Item No 

Item Ward(s) Decision 

 

4.   Petitions - Save Day Centres for 
People with Learning Disabilities in 
Brent 

 That the petition be noted. 

5.   Adult Social Care Direct Services 
review 

All Wards; (i) that approval be given to the final version of the Day Opportunities 
Strategy attached at Appendix B to the report from the Director of Housing 
and Community Care; 
(ii) that approval be given to the implementation of Option 4 where 
implementation is built on a comprehensive and inclusive reassessment 
and support planning process for every current service user, and is subject 
to staff and union consultation;  
(iii) that officers report back in the event of any problems in 
implementing the recommended option 4. 

6.   Deputation - waste collection 
strategy 

 Noted.  

7.   Reference from Call in Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee - waste 
collection and strategy 

 that the recommendations of the Call in Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
in relation to waste and street cleansing and the waste collection strategy 
be not endorsed. 

A
genda Item

 5

P
age 115



London Borough of Brent – Summary of Decisions taken by the Executive on Monday, 13 December 2010 (continued) 
 

Agenda 
Item No 

Item Ward(s) Decision 

 
 

2 

   

8.   Authority to award a construction 
contract for the re-building of 
Roundwood Youth Centre 

Harlesden; 
Kensal Green; 
Willesden Green; 

(i) that the award of a contract for pre-construction services and 
preliminaries in the sum of £346,990.00 to Morgan Sindall Construction plc 
(formally known as Morgan Ashurst) in relation to the construction works at 
Roundwood Youth Centre be noted; 
(ii) that the authority be delegated to the Director of Children and 
Families to award a contract for the construction works at Roundwood 
Youth Centre to Morgan Sindall Construction plc, subject to confirmation of 
myplace Big Lottery funding from the Department for Education and 
subject to confirmation that the final price tendered is within the limit of the 
Big Lottery funding. 

9.   Statement of licensing policy - 
Licensing Act 2003 

All Wards; that approval be given to the report from the Director of Environment and 
Neighbourhood Services and to the adoption of the proposed changes to 
the Statement of Licensing Policy. 

10.   Civic offices and property 
disposals strategy 

Barnhill; 
Stonebridge; 
Wembley 
Central; 
Willesden Green; 

(i) that the appointment of consultants Collyers International to 
provide advice and guidance to the marketing and selection of purchasers 
for various properties as outlined in the report and any additional 
properties that might become surplus following the outcome of various 
One Council Reviews be noted;  
(ii) that agreement be given to the appropriation of the Town Hall site 
pursuant to S.122 of the Local Government Act 1972 for planning 
purposes provided that it is satisfied in principle that the Town Hall site is 
no longer required for the purposes for which it is currently held; 
(iii) that it be noted that a report or reports will be presented to a future 
meeting of the Executive which would recommend the disposal of these 
assets. These reports will follow on from appropriate marketing and 
subject to contract negotiations. 

11.   Local Development Framework - All Wards; (i) that the views expressed, and recommendation made, by Planning 

P
age 116



London Borough of Brent – Summary of Decisions taken by the Executive on Monday, 13 December 2010 (continued) 
 

Agenda 
Item No 

Item Ward(s) Decision 

 
 

3 

   

West London Waste Development 
Plan 

Committee in making a decision on the Waste DPD be noted; 
(ii) that the draft joint West London Waste Plan for formal public 
consultation be approved for 6 weeks commencing in mid January 2011;  
(iii) that it be noted that approval has been, or is being, sought to 
undertake consultation on the draft West London Waste Plan by five other 
west London councils, namely Hillingdon, Ealing, Harrow, Hounslow and 
Richmond upon Thames, as members of the West London Waste 
Authority partnership.  

12.   Collection Fund Surplus/Deficit at 
31 March 2011 

All Wards; that approval be given to the calculation of the estimated Collection Fund 
balance as at the 31 March 2011 as a deficit of £1.3million. 

13.   Performance and Finance Review 
quarter two 

All Wards; (i) that the council’s spending, activity and performance in the second 
quarter of 2010/11 be noted; 
(ii) that all directors ensure that spending is kept within budget and 
underperformance tackled, and that measures are taken, in consultation 
with relevant portfolio holders, to achieve this; 
(iii) that approval be given to the virements detailed in appendix F of 
the report from the Director of Finance and Corporate Services. 

14.   Fees and Charges All Wards; (i) that the proposed increases in fees and charges in Appendix A to 
the report from the Director of Finance and Corporate Services apply from 
1 January 2011; 
(ii) that the  proposed increases from 1 January 2011 in charges for 
advertising, design and the language service be agreed;  
(ii) agree that in the event that any of the proposed increases in 
paragraphs (i) or (ii) above are in excess of the permitted maximum, the 
increases would be set at the maximum level allowed; 
(iv) that the increase in on- and off-street parking charges set out in 
paragraphs 5.8 and 5.9 of the report and the issue of the necessary 

P
age 117



London Borough of Brent – Summary of Decisions taken by the Executive on Monday, 13 December 2010 (continued) 
 

Agenda 
Item No 

Item Ward(s) Decision 

 
 

4 

   

notices to allow the increases to apply from 1  February 2011 or as soon 
as possible thereafter be agreed; 
(v) that the first hour of off-street parking is frozen at its current level 
and that officers report back to the next meeting of the Executive on the 
most effective way of implementing a free first hour parking; 
(vi) that be noted that, for those fees and charges that are inclusive of 
VAT, the increase would include the increase in VAT from 17.5% to 20% 
from 1 January 2011; 
(vii) that it be noted that officers will be reviewing charges in other 
areas listed in paragraph 5.10 of the report and would report back to the 
Executive on these issues. 

16.   Reference of item considered by 
Call in Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee - Elms Gardens 
allotments 

 (i) that the views of the Call in Overview and Scrutiny Committee in 
relation to Elms Gardens allotments be noted; 
(ii) that the officers discuss the development proposals with Notting 
Hill Housing Association and the Homes and Communities Agency to seek 
views on the proposed purchase; 
(iii) that officers also consult with Barham Park estate residents on the 
implications of the development for the Barham Park estate regeneration. 

18.   Authority to approve extension of 
contracts for housing support 
services for people with physical 
disabilities 

All Wards; (i) that approval be given to an exemption from the usual tendering 
requirements of Contract Standing Orders in relation to the 
accommodation services and floating support services for people with 
physical disabilities, on the basis that there are good operational and/ or 
financial reasons for doing so as set out in Section 3 of the report from the 
Director of Housing and Community Care;  
(ii) that approval be given to an extension of one year from 
17 December 2010 to 16 December 2011, for all the seven Supporting 
People funded Physical Disability/Sensory Impairment contracts, (as listed 
in paragraph 3.4 of the report from the Director of Housing and Community 

P
age 118



London Borough of Brent – Summary of Decisions taken by the Executive on Monday, 13 December 2010 (continued) 
 

Agenda 
Item No 

Item Ward(s) Decision 

 
 

5 

   

Care) with the scope to extend for up to another year to 16 December 
2012 (two years in total) if the services continue to be strategically 
relevant, demonstrate good value for money, and continue to demonstrate 
satisfactory performance. 

 

P
age 119



P
age 120

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meetings held on 30 November 2010 and 9 December 2010
	4a Adult Social Care Direct Services review
	hcc-direct-services-appa
	hcc-direct-services-appb
	hcc-direct-services-appc
	hcc-direct-services-appd

	4b Fees and Charges
	fcs-fees-charges-appa v5

	5 The Executive list of decisions for the meeting that took place on Monday, 13 December 2010

